Newhall Register Report


We are descended from a full eight lines of Newhalls from the parents of the emigrants Thomas, Anthony & Elizabeth to my grandmother Marian Louise Newhall..  If we were able to chart it accurately, it would have a football shape.  Also, the Newhall Family could credibly be called one of the more prolific in Lynn, Essex co., MA – hence the proliferation of favorable historical publicity in the 1800s.  It is also an incredibly inbred family.  Thus, the Newhall lines have been a lot of work, but research is far from complete and comprehensive.  The lines are sound and Vital Records have been fairly thoroughly searched.  However, I would love to get a full set of wills, deeds, legal records and other primary sources into the Newhall family research, then extrapolate upon the lives of these people from those documents.  These will be added with lots of time.

The Newhalls have yet to appear in “The Great Migration” series.  My guess is that solid, documented proof the family’s existence in Lynn before 1635 to the scholarship standards of the research project have yet to be found.  Family lore, of course, maintains that the three emigrant children and progenitors of the family line in Eastern Massachusetts  came to Lynn, Essex co., MA in 1630.  It is now known that Elizabeth came over with her husband Edmund Farrington in 1635 and that Anthony & his family probably came over at roughly the same time.  Thomas was probably here earlier, but concrete proof is fuzzy.  An infamous family “fact” is that Thomas’ son Thomas was “the first white child born in Lynn” in 1630.  Anderson maintains that this is a nineteenth century fiction and, without solid proof, one cannot dispute that conclusion.  Still, it was a nice feeling to discover Thomas (1630) and his tale and know that I had confirmed one of the few family statements my long-dead grandmother had averred when I knew her in the last stages of what is now known as Alzheimer’s Disease.  Whether the tale is true or not, she was correct that we are descended from this man.  We are also descended from his brother Anthony & sister Elizabeth.  In short, we are related in some fashion to all the Newhalls of this branch of the family.  While Newhall and Newell are often used interchangeably in the town records, there is a distinctly different family descended from Abraham Newell and one must be careful not to confuse the two!  However, in doing research, I’ve found that one must search under the following name variations to find everyone’s records and sort them out correctly:  Nehall, Neuhall, Newal, Newall, Newel, Newell, Newhal, Newhall, Newhaul, Newhill, Newill, Nuall, Nuhall, Nuhaul.

I’ve read 19th century tracts on the Newhalls which are written in prose as purple as a Harlequin romance novel.  Sifting fact from fiction is thus a careful process with this family.  The 19th century writers were big on extolling the virtues of the family members, but short on factual citations and full reproduction of primary sources like wills and deeds (The style of the time was to distill the “important” facts for the reader.)  Even within written family notes and lore, I’ve found a yearning to prove an alliance with a prominent (usually “19th century prominent”) Lynn family or to prove the “upstanding” or important nature of a given person or line prevails over presenting an accurate account of the family. This is seen in the prevailing Newhall sources. This bias and the obsession the 19th century chroniclers had with “Thomas-as-first-white-child-born-in-Lynn” also meant that his brother Anthony ‘s family got extremely short shrift in research and publication and their other siblings are not mentioned at all!  Working with early research on the Newhalls gives the impression that only Thomas and Anthony crossed the sea and that only Thomas’ descendants were “worth chronicling”.

The most accurate 19th century history of the family is the excellent Henry Waters account in the Essex Institute Historical Collections and later reprinted as a book in its own right..  It is well-written and well-cited.  Charles Newhall’s “History of My Ancestry” is basically lifted verbatim and without attribution from Waters.  James Newhall’s history of Lynn includes many interesting Newhall accounts – including one which literally reads as fairy tale and tells how the First Newhall Mother (a pure-blood Saxon, daughter of the devoted servant of the Lord of the Manor) and the First Newhall Father (a pure-blood Norman, and said Lord of the Manor) got together and gave birth to the First Newhall Son.  It has no citations to show any basis in fact and comes across as pure, unmitigated 19th century fiction to the 21st century reader.  In short, Newhall accounts tend to be more fanciful and less accurate than those written by scholars without the Newhall surname or close ties.  I have learned a great deal about how to (and how NOT to) do genealogical research from having to do extensive research on this family.

And so, to the family research at hand…

Newhall Coat of Arms:  Azure, 3 plates or, on each an ermine spot sable  Crest:  a cross crosslet fetchée azure.  Motto:  Diligentia ditat.[1]
Before the reformation, the family lived in Wiltshire, England, apparently as yeomen, since they had some estates at the time.  “Virtually none” of these family estates were extant when Waters published his research in 1882.  By the 1630s, the family was in the area of Olney, Buckinghamshire, England.  Olney still exists as a small town smack in the middle of a triangle formed between Northampton, Bedford & Milton Keynes/Bletchley.  Thus, the Newhalls were within a short distance of the areas of Kempston & Henlow where the Ivory family held lands.

Waters cites the following general info about the Newhall Family:

“...In GLEANINGS FROM ENGLISH RECORDS ABOUT NEW ENGLAND FAMILIES, published in Essex Historical Collections for the year 1880 (Parts I and II), may be found...abstracts of various Newhall, Newall and Newell wills examined in London, not one of which, however, seems to furnish any clew that will assist us in tracing the English origin of this family.  The earliest reference to the name in the GLEANINGS was to one Thomas Newhall, whose will, written in latin in 1498 and proved 22 April 1499, mentions, among others, wife Emmota and a Thomas Newhall whom he appoints executors.  He wishes his body to be buried in the chapel of Witton and makes bequests to the Abbot and Convent of the Blessed Mary of Vale Royal, and for the repairs of the church at Budworth.  All these places are in Cheshire.  The earliest mention of the name in printed history is to be found in Bloomfield’s history of Norfolk, wherein we learn that a certain manor was bewtowed by one of the baronial proprietors upon one of his sons, who built a new hall, whence he obtained the name of Johannis de Nova Aula, alias John de Newehall.  This indicates the probable origin of the surname, which may have thus arisen and become established...in various parts of England...”[2]
Charles Newhall averred that Johannis de Nova Aula was in Wiltshire in the 11th century[3].  He further quotes James R. Newhall:  “...’Oliver Cromwell seems to have been the owner of a manor called Newhall; and indeed the writer remembers to have seen the names Cromwell and Newhall in some way connected far back in English history.  But the Protector, finding the possession yielding but little, or perhaps being pushed for means, in 1656 expressed a desire to dispose of the estate.’  He authorized his son to sell it for £18,000 but whether he realized that amount we known not.  One or more of the Dukes of Buckingham once occupied a manor of Newhall about 1320...”[3]
Charles Newhall cites the aforementioned will of Thomas Newhall (1498/1499) and further mentions that translation of the Latin indicates that Thomas had a brother named Hugo, daughters named Margaret and Elizabeth and “other females who may have been married daughters”.  Apparent sons named are Thomas (who received one cow and was named co-executor with his mother Emmota), William and Stephen[4].  He further cites the will of Thomas Newell, proven 24 September 1529, which mentions a sister named Margaret as an example of the interchangability of Newhall and Newell[5].

Sans proof, I have chosen to start the family with the currently unnamed parents of Thomas, Anthony & Elizabeth Newhall.  Further research on English Genealogical Gleanings will hopefully connect the Lynn Family with its English Origins.

First Generation 
—————————————————————————————————————————————

1. [not known]1 NEWHALL.  Nothing is concretely known of him or his wife, save that he had died by 24 January 1604/5.

They had the following children:


2
i.
Elizabeth (1586-)


3
ii.
Thomas (1600-1674)


4
iii.
Francis


5
iv.
Anne


6
v.
Mary


7
vi.
Anthony (-1656)

Generations and Person Numbers:

Line 1:  G9 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (3584/3585)

Line 2:  G9 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (3840/3841)

Line 3:  G10 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (7296/7297)

Line 4:  G9 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (3632/3633)

Line 5:  G11 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Bassett, Breed, Hood via Anthony)  (16236/16237)

Line 6:  G10 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Breed, Hood, via Anthony)  (8108/8109)

Line 7:  G9 Grandparents (Newhall,Breed, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (3626/3627)

Line 8:  G11 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Burrill, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (16178/16179)

Second Generation 

—————————————————————————————————————————————

2. Elizabeth2 NEWHALL (not known1) was born in 1586 in Olney, Buckinghamshire, England and died on 15d:10m:1658 in Lynn, Essex co., MA.

On 29 November 1613 when Elizabeth was 27, she married Edmund FARRINGTON (see Farrington), in Sherington, Buckinghamshire, England. He was a Farmer & owner of the “well known tidemill in Lynn” [6].

Edmund, Elizabeth and their children Sarah, John, Elizabeth, Mathew & Martha  (Thomas, Edward and Joseph stayed in England) emigrated from England to America on the Hopewell; sailing from England on 1 April 1635 and arriving in Boston, MA in June 1635.

They had the following children (surnamed Farrington):


8
i.
Sarah (1619-)


9
ii.
Mathew (1620-1700)


10
iii.
Thomas (<1621-)


11
iv.
Edward (<1621-)


12
v.
Joseph (<1621-)


13
vi.
John (1622-)


14
vii.
Martha (1623-)


15
viii.
Elizabeth (1624-)

Line 7:  G8 Grandparents (Newhall,Breed, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (1812/1813)

Line 8:  G10 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Burrill, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (8088/8089)

3. Thomas2 NEWHALL (not known1) was born on 8 June 1600 in Fulham, England and died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 25 May 1674; he was 73[7,8,9].  He is Waters #1.

On 12 June 1618 when Thomas was 18, he married Mary Jane PENDLETON/WOOD/WOODARD, in England[7,17,18,19,20,21,22,23,24,25,26,27,28,29,30,9,31]  Mary Jane was born circa 1601 in England and died in Lynn, MA on 25 September 1665; she was 64[7,9,11].

Family Lore has Thomas, Sr. and family emigrating to Salem, Essex co., MA in 1630.  Proof of his migration is not yet found.  In addition, Freeman evidence not found by Charles Newhall[5].  Regardless, Thomas immediately moved to Lynn, Essex co., MA and was one of its first settlers.  He was granted 30 acres in the 1638 land distribution.  He was also part of the group which first settled Southampton, Long Island, NH.

Alonzo Lewis maintained that he “...lived on the wast side of Federal street, a few rods south of the mill brook, owning all the lands, on that side, between the Turnpike and Marion Street...”  This was disproved by Waters[16].

As to the extent of his education, Thomas only made “his mark” on his will.  Charles Newhall (quoting James Newhall) maintains that Thomas knew how to write (although he had yet to find an actual signature) and made a mark only  because of “infirmity, rather than ignorance”.[10]
Thomas’ will was signed on 1 April 1668, proved on 30d:4m:1674[11] and the estate administered on 25d:4m:1674.

 “The last will and testament of Thomas Newhall Senior of Lyn in the county of Essex hauinge his prefect memory and understandinge iMprimis I bequeath my Spirritt to the Lord that gaue it and my Body to the dust from whence it was taken.  I bequeath my twelf acres of salt marsh to my sonn Thomas Newhall and my sonn John Newhall, the six acres that my sonn Thomas  shall haue is three Acres in Rumley marsh neere the Island, and the rest is a pcell lyinge in the Towne marsh caled Gaines his neck and another pcell lyinge in the Towne marsh adioyninge to my Brother ffarington and the six acres yt my sonn John shall haue lyeth in the last Deuission in Rumley marsh, but if my soon John should haue noe child before he dyeth then the six Acres I giue to my sonn John, to returne to my sonn Thomas & his heires for euer but if my sonn John should haue a child or childeren, then the sd six Acres to bee att his owne disposse foreuer.  I bequeath to my sonn Thomas Brownes his children twenty Pounds equally to be deuided betweene them and the sixteene Pounds wch he hath alredy of mine in his hands is to be pt of this Twenty pounds I giue to his childeren.  I bequeath to my sonn Richard Hauen his childeren twenty pounds to be equally deuided amongst them, namly betweene Joseph Hauen, Richard Hauen, Sarah Hauen, Nathaniell Hauen & Moses Hauen this not to be pd vntill they com to the age of twenty one yeares, I bequeath to my tow daughters, Susana Hauen & Mary Browne each of them a paire of sheetes & each of them too pillow beares.  Alsoe I constitute & make my lawfull & sole executor & to pforme this my last will & testament, my sonn Thomas Newhall.  I doe alsoe bequeath to my sonn Thomas Newhall his childeren thirty pounds, and that this is my tru will & testament I haue sett to my hand this first of aprill, 1668:”

Thomas (his T mark) Newhall, senier.

Witness: Thomas Laighton, Robert Potter

Proved in Salem court 1d:5m:1674 by the witnesses[12].

Inventory taken 25d:4m:1674 by Oliver Purchas and Robert (his mark) Burges:

An old dwelling house with an old Barne & 6 acres of upland & 12 acres of meddow, 95li.

30 acres of land in the woods, som pt. meddow, 30li.

an old fether bed. 1 Bolster. 1 pillow, 1 pillowbear, 2li. 10s.

1 Green Rugg, old, 1 Branched Coverlett, 1 old blankett, 1 old pr of Curtaines & vallence, 2li.

2 pr of sheets, 1 tablecloth & 3 napkins, 2li.

1 Hatt & his wearing apparrell with 2 bands, 3li.

1yrd & 1/2 of Red Cotton or such like, 4s. 6d.

5 vessels of Brass, kettls, pots & skillett, 2li.

an iron Kettle & skillett, 8s.

pewter as 3 platters, 1 small flaggon, 1 Bowl & 1 Candlestick, 1 pott of a pint or more, 1li. 10 s.

2 chayres, 12s.

1 Box & some small matters in it, as two small black hankerchiefs, 1 black quoife, 1 Bonnett, & two small Remnants Linnen, 16s.

money, 5s. 7 1-2d.

a small pcell of land about an Acre neere ye ouershut mill betweene the mil wast & ye Caweway (Causeway) Bridg, 3li.

estate in ye hands of John Newhall his son, 20li.

one-halfe pinte pott, 1s. 6d.

some debts due to him p weaving &c., 6li.

total, 173li. 1s. 7 1-2d.

Attested in Salem court 1d:5m:1674 by Tho. Newhall[12,13]
Waters says that the thirty acres referred to were the 30 acres he received in the 1638 Land Distribution[14].

Interestingly, he does not mention his grandchildren Hannah, Mary, Susanna & John Haven in this will[15].

They had the following children:


16
i.
Susanna (ca 1624-1682)


17
ii.
Thomas (1630-1687)


18
iii.
Mary (1637->1701)


19
iv.
Francis


20
v.
John (-<1718)

Line 1:  G8 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (1792/1793)

Line 3:  G9 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (3648/3649)

Line 4:  G8 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (1816/1817)

4. Francis2 NEWHALL (not known1) was buried on 24 January 1604/5.

5. Anne2 NEWHALL (not known1) was baptized on 8 January 1620/1 and on 18 Jan 1635/6 married Baldwin PARKER.

6. Mary2 NEWHALL (not known1) married Raphael ROSE on 15 October 1635.

7. Anthony2 NEWHALL (not known1) died in 31d:11m (January):1656/7 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[7,32,33].  He is Waters #2.  On 6 November 1632 Anthony married Mary WHITE, in Olney, Buckinghamshire England[7,17,39,40,41,42,43,44].  Mary died before 14 January 1656.

Anthony was in Lynn by 1636[33] and was granted 30 acres in the Lynn, Essex co., MA 1638 Land Distibution[33].  His homestead was on the east side of Federal Street and went to Anthony’s son John in Anthony’s will.  Waters pointedly corrects Alonzo Lewis, who states that this parcel abutting Federal Street belonged to Anthony’s brother, Thomas Newhall.  Waters states that this “can be shown very conclusively”, but gives no sources[38].  Supposedly, he lived in Salem for a time[33].

Anthony’s will was written on 14 January 1656 and proved on 31 March 1656/7[34].

Estate of Anthony Newhall of Lynn

 “The Last will and Testyment of Anthony Newhall.

1  I will that my grand child Richard hood shall hau on Ewe lamb att the next Encreast

2  I will that my grand child Elizabeth hood shall haue one Ewe lamb at the next Encreas

3  I doe giue my dafftter mary the third part of the Encress of my orchard for Seuen years afftter the datt hearof

4  I doe giue my daffter may that pcall of ground that lys one the other Syde the brook at the north End of my hows lott uppon condittyon that her huisband doe bulld a dwelling hows oppon it

5  I will that my dafftter mary shall hau my fether ||bed|| aftter my decease with all things bellonging to it only that my Son John shall hau a boulster ffilled with fethers  Theas affowrsayd legasys I giu my daffter mary for her carffull attendanc of me and great payns she hes bin at with me:

6  of the remayning prt of my wholl Esttat I doe giue my Son John newhall tow parts and to my daffter mary I giue one part deuided to Ech of them accourding to my will as followeth

  1  I will that my Son John newhall shall haue my hows and land that I now liue in bounded form the brook att the north End ypp to the land of gorg ffrayll at the South End

  2  I will that my daffter mary shall hau that lott lying betwixt the land of John hawthorns and John Ransdell

  3  I will that my Son John Shall hau 4 akers of that land that lys by Jonathan hudsons

  4  I will that my Son John shall hau twenty akers of oupland lying oup in the Country

  5  I will that my daffter mary shall hau ten akers of oupland lying in the Country

  6  I will that my Son John shall hau 4 akers of that medow that lys oup in the Country and I will that my daffter mary shall hau tow akers of that medow that lys oupp in the Country

  7  I will that my Son John shall hau tow akers of Sallt march lying in the town march att the tow tres and 3 akers att mr neadums and on aker Richard mors and on aker lying in the frech march

  8  I will that my daffter mary shall ||hau|| 4 akers of Sallt march lying towards goodman Edmonds in Rumlly in the first deuision and tow akers of Sallt march in the last diuydent

I will that my Son John newhall shall haue Tow Cows and one oxe  I will that my daffter mary shall hau on cow and on stear  I giu my Son John 2 Iron potts and a great bras kettell

I giu to my daffter mary on bras pan I giu to John tow pewttur platters and to my dafter mary on platter  I giu to my Son on boulster on ould Couerlid and to my daffter mary on pillow  I giu to my Son John tow par of potthooks and on poyy hanger and one frying pan  I giu to my daffter mary on  warminge pan  I giu me Son ||John|| on new Cauerlide and a brase pott  I giue my daffter mary flocks for a littell bed  I hiug to my Son John i heckell and to my daffter mary the dubull heckell  I giu to my Son John and my daffter mary the grinston betwixt them So long as it last  I will that what So Euer of my Estat yt is not yet giuen or yett deuyded shall be giuen tow parts to my Son John and on part to my daffter mary

ffurther I will That my Son John newhall and my dafftter mary shall Eche of them hau the produce of Eche others proporttions of my Estat whils I liue and accourding to ther Seuerall proportions to mayntayn me whils I liue.  I will that theas Seuerall gifts of my Estat t obe ffully Rattyfied and Conffermd affter my dissceas and not beffore to Eche of them

I will:  That if my Son John newhall should dye and hau noe Chilldren That then my hows and lands shall return to my daffter mary and her heirs  I will that nathanell Kertland and mathew ffarrington and John ffuller be ouerseers of this my last will & Testyment To wich I wittnes with my hand to be my true and lawffull will.  This 14 day of January 1656.”

[his mark]

Antthony A Newhall

Witness:  John ffuller, Thomas  [his mark] Couldun, Mathew ffarington, Nathanill kirtland and Jonathon Hudson.

Proved in Ipswich court Mar. 31, 1657 by John Fuller and Mathew Farington.

Proved 30d:1m:1657 by Thomas Couldon and Nathaniell Kearland.

Inventory taken 6d:12m:1656, sworn to by Richard Hood, Mar. 31, 1656:

Whearring apparrill, he lying long bedride but small, 2li.

one great brase kettell, 5s.

one brasse pane, 15s

one littell brass kettell, 5s.

one brase pott, 10s.

one warming pan, 4s.

one skimmor and brass laddell with other ould peasses of brass, 2s.

thre pewttor platters, 10s. 8d.

one pewtter Candellstick, 1s. 6d.

ould peases of pewtor, 3s. 4d.

tow Iron potts, one Iron skillett, Tow par of pott hoks, 18s. 6d.

tow pare of Iron Racks, on Spit with Sertin peases of ould Iron, 9s.

two handsaws, one ould wip saw, one squar, tow ould augurs, one ould handsaw, 11s. 6d.

one Iron punch and one Iron laddell, one Claboad frow, 4s. 6d.

one Carbyn, one ould Sword, 15s.

one singull heckell and one dubell heckell 8s.

one wyre sife, one ould wyer sife, one hare sife, 6s.

wouden trays and diches, 2s. 6d.

one buttur tub, one bear barrill and a kneading troff with other ould Cask, 8s.

a pare of ould andirons and a frying pane, 6s.

thre ould bybells and thre other ould books, 17s.

seven pans of glas, 10s.

one brase pistell, 8s.

an ould flaskit, one ould box, 1s. 4d.

in lead, 3s.

an ould fether bed and boolster, one pillow and pillow bear, 1li. 18 s.

one ould ruge, one ould blankit, 9s.

one ould flock bed, an ould boolster, 10s.

one ould Covelid and tow ould blankit, one fether boolster, one ould fether pellow, one sheet, 12s.

one Joyn bedsted and bed cord and matt, 1li. 8s.

one Grenston with an Iron ____, 12s.

one Ewe sheap, 1li., 15s.

one oxe, 5li.

thre Cows, 10li. 10s.

one stear, 2li. 10s.

fowr Iron hops for wheals and one Ex, pins, one Ring, 10s.

one Coverled, 1li. 10s.

one dwelling hows and barne and fiv ackers of land and an orchard att hom, fowr akers of upland by John hawthorns hows, six ackers of upland lying by Jonathan hudssons, eight akers of upland lying by the fresh marsh, therty akers of upland lying oup in the Country, six akers of Salt marsh lying in the town march, six akers in Rumly march, one ackers of fresh march in the town, six akers of fresh march in the Country, due from Edward Richards twenty-fice shillings; whe forbare to put any prise oupon the land or howses and cattell becaus the deceased in his will hath divided them to his tow Chilldren ech one ther partt.  [Essex co. Quarterly Court Files, vol. 3, leaf 105]35
Administration on the estate granted Mar. 31, 1657, to Richard Hud, to settle it according to the will.  Administration bond.  Overseets appointed by the court:  Matthew Farington, John Fullar and Nathaniell Kertland.  [Ipswich Quarterly Court Records, vol. 1, page 61][36,37]
They had the following children:


21
i.
John


22
ii.
Mary

Line 2:  G8 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (1920/1921)

Line 5:  G10 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Bassett, Breed, Hood via Anthony)  (8118/8119)

Line 6:  G9 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Breed, Hood, via Anthony)  (4054/4055)

Third Generation 
—————————————————————————————————————————————

16. Susanna3 NEWHALL (Thomas2, not known1) was born circa 1624[45] and died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 7 February 1682; she was 58[15].  She is Waters #3. Susanna married Richard HAVEN – who was born in “the West of England” [47] but was in Lynn, Essex co., MA ca. 1645[47].

She gave the following deposition in 1661:[46]
“The testimonye of Susanna Haven aged about thirtye seuen years sworne saith that the wife of Will. Longlye came to my housbands house (it was the weeke of boston county court last)  :  and I asked her what news at boston, she said John Hathorne was cast and the bulls were recouered from him and that the magistrats said they might charge him the said Hathorne with fellony but sayed she, that which is worse then all this is; that John hathorne had put more into a writing then should be & that it was forgerye and that the magistrats did very much check him for it -- & further saith not.  Sworne in Court at Salem...”

She was also deposed on 5 November 1678, where she states her age as being “about fifty six” [47].

Estate: Richard wrote his will on 21 May 1701, with John Burrill, Jr.; Joseph Burrill & Sarah Ballord as witnesses.  The will was proved on 14 June 1703.  Again, Waters gives the “highlights”:  “...In it he mentions son John, son Nathaniell, grandson Joseph, son of son Richard Haven dec’d, son Moses, dau. Hannah Gooddell, son in law, John Tarbox, dau. Sarah Whitney, grandson Westol Cogswell, grand dau. Hannah Parker, gr. dau. Hannah Gooddell, son Moses Haven’s children, dau. Hannah’s children.  The homestead, which he left to his son Moses, except that part of it where his daughter Hannah’s house stood, lay North of Mill Street and next East of the lot which William Longley sold to Thomas Browne in 1663.  It embraces all those house lots lying West of the extension of Federal Street and running from Mill Street back to the Rocks or to the road leading to Fresh Marsh...” [48]
They had the following children (surnamed HAVEN):


29
i.
Hannah (1645-)


30
ii.
Mary (1647-1690)


31
iii.
Joseph (1649-)


32
iv.
Richard (1651-1701)


33
v.
Susanna (1653-)


34
vi.
Sarah (1655-)


35
vii.
John (1656-)


36
viii.
Martha (1658-1659)


37
ix.
Samuel (1660-1660)


38
x.
Jonathon (1662-1664)


39
xi.
Nathaniel (1664-)


40
xii.
Moses (1667-)

17. Thomas3 NEWHALL, Jr. (Thomas2, not known1) was born in 1630 or 1631-1632 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,50,51,52]. Thomas died in 1687; he was 57[49,53].   He was buried on 1 April 1687 in Old Burying Ground, Lynn, Essex co., MA; Lynn, Essex co., MA[7,54].  At the age of 2, Thomas was supposedly baptized in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 8 June 1632[55].  However, this account is now in dispute. Okay, let’s deal with this “First White Child Born In Lynn” Thing.  The commonly accepted legend as reported in Lewis’ History Of Lynn says that Thomas Newhall, Jr. was the First White Child Born In Lynn and was born in 1630.  Further related is the claim that Thomas was baptised by the Reverend Stephen Bachiler upon his arrival to the Lynn settlement in 1632.  By way of refute, Waters says it best&#58;  Thomas is “said to have been the first white child born in Lynn (1630), but according to his own depositions was born about 1631-1632...”[56]  Thomas could read and write[53].  He is Waters #4.

He served in the local military --  known as Corporal Thomas Newhall in Nicholas Potters deed of 26 May May 1675 and Ensign Thomas Newhall at the time of his death[64,66].

In addition to his duties as a husbandman and farmer, Thomas, Jr. was apparently the local malster.  This is shown by ht etools and malt house left in his will and the account of the 50th anniversary of Lynn given by Charles Newhall, where Thomas makes a present of his finest cider.  The maltser was a fairly important and skilled occupation in colonial New England.  The English emigrants brought with them their inante (and justified) mistrust of common water supplies.  Wells in England were more often brackish harbors of disease than reservoirs of sweet-tasting, healthy water.  Thus, the colonists drank beer, cider and – when available in the summer – milk.  Some goodwives would lay in a months’ long supply of beer or cider in their homes.  Others would brew “small beer” on a weekly or bi-weekly basis.  While these women were skilled brewmistresses, malting was not a skill for the everywoman.  Laurel Thatcher Ulrich describes it as “the process of sprouting and drying barley to increase its sugar content…wisely left to the village expert”[308]  Thus, Thomas’ skills were not only in demand, but of great importance to the settlement – despite this omission in the histories of propriety-minded 19th century historians ;^)  !

Thomas owned all the lands east of Federal Street, between the Turnpike and Marion Street (on the borders of what is now Lynnfield), according to Alonzo Lewis.  However, Charles Newhall uses the evidence given in the various lawsuits involving Thomas to place his home near the center of town, near George Keser’s tannery.

On 30 November 1679, he bought “threescore acres” from Ezekiel and Sarah Needham.  This plot was “bounded easterly with the dividing line between Salem  and Lynn, westerly by ‘a certaine farme comonly caled Mr Humphries but now Major Rainsberry’s farme,’ and southerly by the commons; which land the said Needham purchased of Daniel King, Senior, of Lynn, deceased.” [67,68]  Charles Newhall further postulates that Thomas, Sr. bought this land to portion off to his sons.  Joseph received some of this parcel and Nathaniel appears to have come into possession of some of this land as well.

Of course, let us not forget the New England colonial method of laying out towns in Eastern Massachusetts.  One’s house was in the center of town, near the Common and Meeting house.  One’s farmland, etc. was on the outskirts of the town center.  Therefore, both suppositions could be correct.

Charles Newhall also tells this tale of Thomas Newhall’s position within the town of Lynn:  “...In 1679, the fiftieth anniversary of the settlement of Lynn was celebrated in royal style.  The banquet took place at the ‘Anchor Tavern’, and was attended by all the notables within quite a radius.  Judge Newhall says in ‘Lin:  Her Jewels’:  ‘At the end of the table where were seated the chief dignitaries of the settlement, was Thomas Newhall, a man of respectability, though perhaps remarkable only as being the first white person born on the soil of the Third Plantation, and as the owner of the mill which expressed the best cider in the whole region.  He was the father of ten children, eight or nine of whom were living at the time of this celebration.  They, in their turn, became fathers and mothers, the race increasing till, at the time of the celebration of the two hundred and fiftieth anniversayry it was almost beyond numbering.  Much defernce was paid to him for the interest he took in all public affairs, and for his private virtues.  He had brought as a present to Mr. Turner [the landlord] a can of his very best cider...” [69]
In good Engli\sh tradition, Thomas and his neighbors often settled their disputes before the court.  Thomas’ deposition of 1683:

“Thomas Newhall aged about fifty yeares testifyeth & saith that there was granted and laid out unto my Unkle Anthony Newhall and my Father Thomas Newhall two Lotts of thirty acres apeice [sic], according to ye Record of the Town of Lynne which were undivided, and I ever understood by Record & Comon account that Edward Burcham sometime an Inhabitant of Lynne had a Lott adjoyning to the said Lotts on the east, and further testifyeth yt the said Lotts are now lying in the Township of Redding...10 November 1683.” [57]
Thomas was further tried in March 1663 before the Quarterly Court for battery against the wife of William Longley[58].  Elizabeth [Leighton] Newhall (wife of John Newhall) gave a deposition in the matter of this case of battery against the wife of William Longley:

“The testimony of Elizabeth Newhall ye wife of John Senier and Mary Haven who sayth yt Thomas Newhall Junior was desiered for to howld a poole [pole] for to rone a line between Will Longley and John Newhalls:  then came ye two dafters of ye sayd Longley; namely Mary Longley & Anna Longley and threue stons at ye dayd Thomas Newhall; afterward ye sayd Anna toke up a peace of a pulle and stroke ye sayd Newhall severall blows with it, & presently after ye wife of ye sayd Longley came with a broad axe in hir hand and cam to ye sayd Newhall and violently stroke at ye sayd Newhall with ye sayd axe, but ye sayd Newhall sliped aside & soe ye sayd axe mised him:  orwise wee can not but thinke but yt hee had bine much woulded if not killed:  then presently after ye wife of Will Longley layd howld upone ye poole with hir dafters to pull ye poole away from ye sayd Newhall:  but ye sayd Newhall pulled ye poole from ym.  All this time ye sayd Newhall did stand upon ye land of John Newhalls.  Taken upon oath 28d:1m:1653” [59]
Mary Longley gave the following deposition in this case:

“...that she, with her mother and sister Anna, was ‘striuing to get a poole from Thomas Newhall Junior, taht he was holding up as I conceiue to runne a line, he heuing hold on one end we on the other and the said Newhall being on one side of our orchard fence and wee three on the other side of the said fence within our orchard; we had almost pulled the poole out of his hands but his brother John came and helped him and pulled it from us, and after the said Newhall had got the poole againe he strucke my mother seuerall blows with the poole so that one of her hands was black and blue severall days after.’...” [60]
In addition, litigation was brought in the matter of the death of Thomas’ daughter, Elizabeth1, who drowned in a pit dug by a neighbor:

“The testimony of the wife of Robert Potter and the wife of John Newhall:  Testifieth and saith we seinge the wife of Thomas Newhall Juner in a graite fright for her Child we went to hellpe her look for her Child and we founde it drounded in a pett of watter a littell below the house of Thomas Newhall Juner.”

“We Robert Potter and John Newhall: understandin by Too Testimonies.  That Thomas Newhalls child was drounded in a pett which pett we heard George Kesar saye he digged:  farther we doe Testifie that George Keser had a Tanfatt in that pett.  I John Newhall doe furder Testifie that George Keser did take up his fatt and left the pett open.  Sworn in Court 29d:9m:1665” [61]
“The deposition of Thomas Morris agede therten or fortenn years yestifyeth that when goodman Newels childe was drownde, & he saide in that holl that we rakede out the furtt & put watter in to keep alwifes to go a fishing & he went dowen & showed me the holl & I have sen durt pulled out of that holl: & I have senn John Newell: & Thomas Newell & Joseph Newell put watter and fish into that holl as they say the childe was drownd in & further sayth nott.” [54]
The jury report came back:

“Wee under written being warned by Thomas Wheeler Constable of Lynn to enquire of the death of a child of Tho: Newell Junyr Upon ye 13th of this prsent month meeting at ye dwelling house of ye aforesd Newell wee saw there a dead child, which we were informed was drowned in a pitt of water which pitt or hole of water we were at, where did appeere to us two woemen:  ye wife of Robert Potter & ye wife of John Newall, yt did say to us, yt in yt pitt they found ye said child swimming or floating upon top of ye water and tooke up ye sd child, being dead when they found it, we alsoe asked ye mother of ye sd child how long shee mist the child, whoe said to us, it was betweene half a houwer & an hower & yt ye sd child went from he well ye last yt she saw it living, & upon further inquirye we find noe other cause of ye death of ye said child, being about two yeares of age, but ye said pitt being neere two foot deepe of water & mudd, being neere to ye highway before ye doore of ye said Newall & the said pitt being six or seuen foot ouer & being faling ground, neere to ye said pitt a child playing neere aboute there, any small slip or stumble of a child would ocasion his fale into ye aforesaid pitt:” [54,62]
Inventory of his estate was taken on 8 April 1687 by John Fuller, Sr.; Ralph King & John Burrill and presented to the Court on 14 April 1687 by John Newhall, one of the executors.  It is recorded in Suffolk(!) co., but no evidence of will or inventory is in Court files[63].

The estate was appraised at £700.  It included “...a long table and two forms, a cupboard, cupboard cloth and cushion and galss case, a table, six joined stools with a carpet anda joined chair and cushion.  There were found five guns for fowling and training, at four pounds, two swords at twenty shillings and books at twelve shillings.  Of live stock he had a mare and a colt, two horses, thirty-eight sheep and fourteen lambs, four oxen (two at Josephs), six cows, besides numerous calves, yearlings, two-year-olds, four-year-olds and swine.  In the inventory of real estate we find ‘The Dwelling house and mault house & mault mill and house over it with all appurtenances belonging to the mault house and other prviledges with the Conveniences to the well, as also a six acre Lott adjoyning to the Dwelling house, and an orchard, appertaineing and an old Barne with all priveledges £170.  0s.  0d.; 18 acres adj. the house of John Newhall; Blood’s neck marsh (7-1/4 acres); 3 acres of marsh at Burch Islands; 3 acres at E. side of Great Island in Rumney Marsh; 6-1/2 acres in Battie’s lot; 2 acres in Ramsdell’s neck; 1-1/2 acre in Town marsh; 7 acres at Fox Hill; 30 acres in Reading; two ten-acre lots; 30 acres possessed by Nathl Newhall in the country; and a six-acre lot, only some part taken off that fronts upon the highway...” [64,65]
In 29d:10m (December):1652 when Thomas was 22, he married Elizabeth POTTER, daughter of Nicholas POTTER & Emma KNIGHT, in Lynn, Essex co., MA.[49,7,17,70,22,71,72,73,74]   She was born circa 1632 in Lynn, MA. Buried on 22 Feb 1686/1687 in Old Burying Ground, Lynn, Essex co., MA[7].  Some sources have speculated that Elizabeth could possible be the daughter of Robert Potter instead of Nicholas, but this is doubtful.

Line 1:  G7 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (896/897

Line 3:  G8 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (3648/3649)

Line 4:  G7 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (908/909)

They had the following children:


41
i.
Thomas (1653-)


42
ii.
John (1655-1738)


43
iii.
Joseph (1658-1705)


44
iv.
Nathaniel (1660-1695)


45
v.
Elizabeth1 (1662-ca1665)


46
vi.
Elisha (1665-)


47
vii.
Elizabeth2 (1667-)


48
viii.
Mary (1669-)


49
ix.
Samuel (1672-1719)


50
x.
Rebeca (1675-)

18. Mary3 NEWHALL (Thomas2, not known1) was born in 1637 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[75] and died after 21 April 1701; she was 64[76,77].  She is Waters #6. Mary married Thomas BROWN, son of Nicholas BROWN.  Thomas was born circa 1628[78,83] and died on 28 August 1693; he was 65[82].  Thomas may have had a previous wife, “but Mary was undoubtedly the mother of all his children from and after 1658, when her name, as his wife, first appears on the records...” [76]
“The deposition of Mary Browne aged about thirty one years whoe testifieth and sait, That her cousin John Haucks being at my brother John Newhal his house whoe was ye constable; at a tyme when shee this deponant was there & did heare ye said Jahn Hawckes say; ytDaniell Hutchens said that hee would dliuer up all the cattle yt ye constable had attached, and then this deponany opposed yt saying and asked hom whether hee did not say yt hee would deliuer up all his right yt hee had in them, then John Hawckes said, yea hee did speake such words:  & further saith not.  Sworne in Court at Salem 1d:5m:1668.  Attestes Hillyard Veren Clerics.” [78,79]
“The testimony of Mary Browne aged about fower & tewenty years of age sworne saith that spaking with the wife of William Longlye about John Hathorne, attached a cow or soe; it had not bin much, but to attach all that they had, it was more then he need to haue don:  I sayd to her, I suppose he esteemes his name more then all your estate, shee sd againe to me, his name; is his name so good, or what is his name worth, has he redeemed his name spaking in a slite derideing waye (to my understanding) and spaking further to mee about that which Andrew Mansfeild had said against the sd Hathorne, sayes she what was that; a great peece of busienes; of his mane and reputation & further saith not-- ye aboue written is sworne to in Court at Salem ye 25d:4m:1661 as atestes Hilliard Veren Clerics.” [80,81]
Mary was appointed administratrix of her husband’s estate on 9 October 1693, with John Newhall, Sr. (brother) and Ebeneezer Browne (son) as surities on the bond of administration[82].  Thomas Browne, Sr.’s non cupative will was written down from oral testimony of witnesses on 9 October 1693.  It read:  “Memorandum:  about two years since though in ye last sickness of Thomas Browne thereafter named he declared ye following sentences as his last will & testament who dyed about 6 weeks agoe[82].”  Waters says that this will is not on record, but remains on file in the office of the Register of Probate in Salem, Essex co., MA[82].

The will “mentions his wife, his eldest son Thomas, sons Joseph, John, Daniel and Ebeneezer, and daughter Norwood, and constitutes his ‘brother John Newhall’ and Robert Potter, Senr, overseers.  The witnesses to this will were Jeremiah and Mary Shepard, and John Newhall, Senr.  The widow rendered an account of administration” on 26 August 1695, when distribution was made to the children.  Daughter Norwood is actually Mary, who married Thomas Norwood[84].

Residences: “of Grawton Middlesex” co., MA in June of 1663.  At that time he bought his homestead in Lynn, Essex co., MA from William Longley.  This was six acres of land “bounded E. with land of Richd Haven, W. with land of John Newhall, S. on Mill Street and N. on the common.”  Note the abuttal between William Longley’s land and John Newhall’s land...it was the fence which played a part in the lawsuit between the Longleys and Thomas Newhall[76].

They had the following children (surnamed BROWN or BROWNE):


51
i.
Thomas


52
ii.
Mary1 (1655-1662)


53
iii.
Sarah1 (1657-1658)


54
iv.
Joseph (1658-)


55
v.
Sarah2 (1660-1662)


56
vi.
Jonathon1 (-1666)


57
vii.
John


58
viii.
Mary2 (1666-)


59
ix.
Jonathon2 (1668-)


60
x.
Eleazer (1670-)


61
xi.
Ebeneezer (1671-<1700)


62
xii.
Daniel1 (1673-<1676)


63
xiii.
Ann (Twin) (1674-1674)


64
xiv.
Grace (Twin) (1674-1674)


65
xv.
Daniel2 (1676-)

19. Francis3 NEWHALL (Thomas2, not known1) was baptized on 24 October 1619.

20. John3 NEWHALL (Thomas2, not known1) was born in England[16] and died before 7 April 1718[85].  He is Waters #5.  He was called “John Newhall, Sr.” and his cousin John (Anthony’s son) was called “John Newhall, Jr.” or “John, son of Anthony Newhall”.  Upon this John’s death, his cousin was called “John Newhall, Sr.”.  See this other John’s entry (below) for further explanation of this practice.

John was granted administration at large of his son Joseph’s estate on 4 February 1711/12.  He signed the bond as “John Newhall Se.”[86]
John also served in the King Philip’s war[69].

On 3d:12m (February):1657 John first married Elizabeth LAIGHTON[87], daughter of Thomas LAIGHTON, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[58,66,7,88,19,89,18,90,17,91].  Elizabeth died on 22d:8m (October):1677 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[7,58,66].

Elizabeth gave a deposition in the matter of Thomas Newhall’s case of battery against the wife of William Longley:

“The testimony of Elizabeth Newhall ye wife of John Senier and Mary Haven who sayth yt Thomas Newhall Junior was desiered for to howld a poole [pole] for to rone a line between Will Longley and John Newhalls:  then came ye two dafters of ye sayd Longley; namely Mary Longley & Anna Longley and threue stons at ye dayd Thomas Newhall; afterward ye sayd Anna toke up a peace of a pulle and stroke ye sayd Newhall severall blows with it, & presently after ye wife of ye sayd Longley came with a broad axe in hir hand and cam to ye sayd Newhall and violently stroke at ye sayd Newhall with ye sayd axe, but ye sayd Newhall sliped aside & soe ye sayd axe mised him:  orwise wee can not but thinke but yt hee had bine much woulded if not killed:  then presently after ye wife of Will Longley layd howld upone ye poole with hir dafters to pull ye poole away from ye sayd Newhall:  but ye sayd Newhall pulled ye poole from ym.  All this time ye sayd Newhall did stand upon ye land of John Newhalls.  Taken upon oath 28d:1m:1663”[69]
On 17 July 1679 John second married Sarah FLANDERS[87], daughter of Stephen FLANDERS, in Lynn, Essex co., MA.[58,7,19,92,24,93,17,18,88]  She was born in 1654[7].

They had the following children:


66
i.
Hannah (1679-)


67
ii.
John1 (1681-1681)


68
iii.
Joseph (1682-<1711)


69
iv.
Jeremiah (1684-)


70
v.
Elizabeth (1687-1689)


71
vi.
Sarah (1690-)


72
vii.
John2 (1692-)


73
viii.
Mary (1694-)

21. John3 NEWHALL, Jr./Sr.[94] (Anthony2, not known1) was born ca 1634/1635 [estimated from death info][49].  John died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 6 Jan 1725/6; he was 91[95,96]. John was a carpenter[96].  He is Waters #8.

The Newhall system for naming is borne out in John.  His name was “John Newhall, Jr.” or “John, the son of Anthony Newhall” while his cousin John (Thomas Newhall’s son) was living.  Once his cousin died, John’s appellation was “promoted” to “John Newhall, Sr.” [97]
John’s birthdate is estimated from his gravestone -- where his age at death was given as 92 years on 6 January 1726.  He also identifies himself as being aged “47 years or thereabout” in a deposition of 8 October 1683.  In this deposition, he “Testifieth and saith that about eighteene or nineteene yeares agoe the said Deponent sold to John Peirson Senr of Redding thirty acres of undivided Land Lyeing on a neck of land in sd Redding against Pooles Mill (wch Neck of Land is said to be called pritchetts playne) being ye one half part of yt threescore acres of undivided Land wch was given to his ffather and Uncle.  The wood and Timber thereon being cutt of and ye Land thereby Impoverished was the occasion of the sd Deponts selling sd Land.” [98]
John served in the military and was an Ensign by 1696[97].

Residences: “In 1677 he bought of Samuel Frayle two and three-fourths acres ‘at the head of Newhall’s Lane, a little way from ye Graves, bounded with the Towne Common Southwardly, Mathew Farringtons Eastwardly ye Land of the said John Newhalls Northerly and ye Land Westerly.’  This gave him a frontage along the whole easterly side of Federal street from Lynn common to Boston street.”[99]
On 10 January 1725, he entered a deed to his son, John, made 5 June 1705.  “In this he is styled John Newhall, Junr, carpenter, and he gives to his son a dwelling house, where he [the son] now lives, with the land it stands upon and half the barn near said house, also one-half of the upland ‘where I now live,’ also one-half of the four acre lot in the Millstreet Field, etc., etc....” [100]
According to Waters, “His estate does not appear in probate, but on the 27th of March 1720, he also made a deed of gift to his grandson John Newhall, of Lynn, weaver, he ‘haveing lived long with me and done much for me in my age & weakness and in consideration that my sd Grandson pay to my Children & other Grandchildren the severall Legacies or Gifts as hereafter sett forth viz:  To my son Nathaniel Newhall Twelve pounds’ &c...’to Timothy Breed & Joseph Breed each of them Ten shillings to be paid within one year after my decease having given considerable to their mother in her life time.  To Sarah Norwood ten shillings to Elizabeth Trevitt who hath lived long with me five pounds to be paid within one month after my decease having given considerable to their mother in her life time, to my Two daughters namely Rebecca Collins & Mary Newhall all by indoor moaveables to be equally devided betwixt them & that if my Grandson Henry Newhall shall see cause to dwell in Lynn He to have sixty poles of Land sett out by said John Newhall att ye Notherly head end of my homestead to build an House on for his own improvement for an habitation provided he so build within three years after my decease’ etc., etc.  In consideration of the above he conveys to his grandson John all the rest of the estate, both real and personal.  In this deed he is called John Newhall, Senr, carpenter...”[69]
On 31d:10m (December):1656/7 when John was 22, he married Elizabeth NORMANTON, in Lynn, Essex co., MA.[49,7,101,102,42,33] Elizabeth died on 5 October 1712 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,96].

According to Waters, her paretns are unknown; although he speculates that she may have been related to Abraham Normanton.  Abraham was the schoolmaster in Lynn, Essex co., MA from 1695-1702.  In the town records for 8 January 1695/6 is the following entry:  “The selectmen did agree with Mr. Normanton to be scoolemaster for ye Town for ye year ensewing and the Town to giue him fiue pounds for his Labour & ye Town is to pay twenty fiue shilliings towards teh hire of Nathniell Newhalls house for one year to keep scoole in & ye ad Mr Normanton to hire ye sd house.” [97]
They had the following children:


74
i.
John (1664-1718)


75
ii.
Nathaniel (1658-)


76
iii.
Elizabeth (-1694)


77
iv.
Priscilla (1676-1683)


78
v.
Sarah (1662-)


79
vi.
Mary (1673-)


80
vii.
Rebecca (1670-)

Line 2:  G7 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (960/961)

22. Mary3 NEWHALL (Anthony2, not known1) is Waters #7.  She married Richard HOOD.

On 7 July 1682, Richard & Mary deeded over to Matthew Farrington, Jr. “...a dwelling house and all that parcell of land sometime in the posession of Anthony Newhall deceased, voz., four acres more or less, or two-thirds of a six acre lot where the house stood, bounded Westerly with land of John Gillow, Easterly with land of John Hawthorne, Northerly with land of Robert Potter, Senr, Southerly with the country highway that lyeth in the mill street...”  This four acre lot was bequeathed to Mary in her father, Anthony’s will[103].

“The deposshion of Georg Kezer that saith that littell before Mr Geforde went away from the Iorn worckes that I went to Richard hode diueres times to gett the saide Richarde hode to doe som saueing worcke for me & I couelld not gett hime to hellpe me by noe menes and I asked hime what ones the placke was for and he sayd thay was to doe something about the forge worckes and furder that I saw Richard hod sometimes a sauing of slitt worcke and some times cellowe bordes -- and the place were Richard hode saued was in the pitt before [the] Iorn Workes ware houese neare to the Smith Shope and furder I say not.  Sworne in Court 27d:4m:1656” [104]
Estate: Richard died intestate.  Administration on his estate was granted to his son Richard on 9 December 1695.  Richard died before this administration was finished and administration was then granted to Richard, Sr.’s son John on 7 September 1696.  The estate was divided (account of trust rendered) on 14 December 1696.  “...’The children of the eldest son, he being dec’d,’ two shares, and John, Samuel, Nathaniel, Joseph, Benjamin, Mary, Sarah, Elizabeth, Ruth, Rebeckah, Hannah and Anna Hood each one share...” [105]
Residences: Supposedly, Richard is from Lynn Regis, Norfolk, England[104].  “In B.I.P. 58, Registry of Deeds for Essex County, Mass., appears record of conveyance by John Hood of Lynn for 30£ to Wm. Crofts of ‘three dwelling howses or tenements wth all thereto belonging in Halsted in the County of Essex in old England wth a covenant for further assurance, And the said Willm is to pay 40s a peice to the sisters of the said John according to his father’s will the wch areth in the bargain and sale by deed dated the 10th day of December 1652.” [104]
Waters maintains that they built their homestead on the larger parcel of land left to them by Mary’s father Anthony (and later sold to Mathew Farrington, Jr.) instead of the smaller lot north of the brook which Anthony stipulated in his will that they were to build[106].

They had the following children (surnamed HOOD):


81
i.
Mary (<1655-)


82
ii.
Richard (1655-<1696)


83
iii.
Sarah (1657-)


84
iv.
Elizabeth (ca1658-)


85
v.
Ruth (ca1660-)


86
vi.
Rebecca (1662-)


87
vii.
John (1664-)


88
viii.
Hannah (1665-)


89
ix.
Samuel (1667-)


90
x.
Nathaniel (1669-)


91
xi.
Anna (1672-)


92
xii.
Joseph (1674-)


93
xiii.
Benjamin (1677-)

Line 5:  G9 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Bassett, Breed, Hood via Anthony)  (4058/4059)

Line 6:  G8 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Breed, Hood, via Anthony)  (2026/2027)

Fourth Generation 

—————————————————————————————————————————————

41. Thomas4 NEWHALL (Thomas3-2, not known1) was born in 18d:9m (November):1653 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[66,108]. Thomas was a husbandman and weaver[109] and removed to Malden, Middlesex co., MA[67, 108].  He is Waters #21.

On 9 November 1674 when Thomas was 21, he married Rebecca GREENE, daughter of Thomas GREENE & Rebecca HILLS (-bef 4d:1m (March):1674/5), in Malden or Charlestown.[109,7,110,111,19,112,113,114]  She was born in 1654.[109]
They had the following children:


110
i.
Rebecca


111
ii.
Elizabeth


112
iii.
Thomas


113
iv.
Hannah


114
v.
Daniel (1685-)


115
vi.
Lydia


116
vii.
Samuel


117
viii.
Martha


118
ix.
Elisha

42. John4 NEWHALL, 3rd (Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 14d:12m (February):1655/6 in Lynn, Essex co., MA.[115,49] and died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 20 Jan or June 1738; he was 82[108,85]. He is Waters #22 and was a Bricklayer or Mason [85].

This John was known as “John, Newhall, Tertius”.  However, by 7 April 1718, his uncle John (son of Thomas) had died.  This meant that his uncle John (son of Anthony) moved up to be “John Newhall, Sr.” and this John became “John Newhall, Jr.”  On that date, he gave a deposition calling himself “John Newhall, Jr.” and gave his age as 62[85].

Estate: “His estate does not appear in Probate; but he seems to have conveyed his Real Estate to his only son Jacob” on 24 December 1734 by deed or gift[116].  “This deed describes various parcels, the first of which he calls ‘my homestead where I lately dwelt with the dwelling house & all the other buildings standing thereon and said Homestead contains about twenty acres,’ etc., bounded northerly and northwesterly on the country road, southwesterly and southerly on the Great Bridge River in part and partly on the marsh of Thomas Witt, sutheasterly and easterly partly on the marsh of Brook, so called.  The witnesses to this deed were Richard Johnson, Solomon Newhall and Samuel Johnson...” [117]
Residences: John’s home was “next to the Great Bridge” and deeded to his son Jacob in 1734[67,118].

On 18 June 1677 when John was 22, he married Esther BARTRAM, daughter of William BARTRAM & Sarah [surname not known], in Lynn, Essex co., MA.[108,85,7,119,108,120,19,115]  She was born on 3 April 1658 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,85]. Esther died on 28 September 1728; she was 70[85].

They had the following children:


119
i.
Jacob (1686-1759)


120
ii.
Elizabeth (1678-)


121
iii.
Sarah1 (1679-1679)


122
iv.
Jonathon1 (1681-1688)


123
v.
Sarah2 (1683-1734)


124
vi.
Mary (1689-)


125
vii.
Jonathon2 (1692-1709)

43. Ensign Joseph4 NEWHALL (Thomas3-2, not known1) was born[121] on 22 September 1658 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[108,122]. Joseph died on the road between Boston & Lynn on 29-30 January 1705/6; he was 46[49,108].  He is Waters #23. As seen by his title, Ensign Joseph served in the militia and was also listed frequently in the Town Records “as holding some position of honor or trust.” [122]  He was a member of the Massachusetts General Court, which led to his death.  On 29 January 1705/6, he attended the session of the Massachusetts General Court (the colonial version of the State Senate or House of Representatives).  That night, as he was riding home to Lynn from Boston, he was caught in a snowstorm and froze to death.

Joseph came into possession of some of the “threescore acres” bought by his father Thomas on 30 November 1679 from Ezekiel and Sarah Needham.  This plot was “bounded easterly with the dividing line between Salem and Lynn, westerly by ‘a certaine farme comonly caled Mr Humphries but now Major Rainsberry’s farme,’ and southerly by the commons; which land the said Needham purchased of Daniel King, Senior, of Lynn, deceased.” [67,118]
At the time of his death, he owned a 34-acre farm in north Lynn on the Salem (now Peabody) line.  It was his share of the above deed.  “In addition he had the Pond farm, so called, of one hundred and seventy acres lying north-westerly from his homestead and on the southerly side of Humphrey’s pond, in the present town of Lynnfield.  This was a portion of Col. John Humphrey’s grant, afterwards owned by Richard Hancock and purchased by Joseph Newhall...” [124]
Estate: Administration on his estate was granted on 10 July 1706.  His wife renounced administration, so it was granted to sons Thomas and Joseph.  Distribution of the estate was made on 17 July 1706 amongst the widlow and all the children[123].

Circa 1678 when Joseph was 19, he married Susanna FARRAR, daughter of Thomas FARRAR (1614/1615-23 February 1694) & Elizabeth [SURNAME NOT KNOWN] (-8 January 1680), in Lynn, Essex co., MA.[7,22,125,126,90,127,108,128,129,108,122]  She was born in 26d:1m (March):1659 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,122].

Susanna received “one cowe” in her father’s will[122].  After she remarried, on 2 February 1733, “...Susannah Symonds of Lynn, widow, in presence of Richard Hood and Benj. Newhall, conveyed to her son Samuel Newhall, by deed of gift, all her right in the real estate which had been in the possession of her brother Thomas Farrar, late of Lynn, deceased, and was given unto him, the sd Thos. Farrar, by her hond father Mr. Thos. Farrar, formerly of Lynn, deceased...” [123]
They had the following children:


126
i.
Joseph (1683-1742)


127
ii.
Jemima (1678-)


128
iii.
Thomas (1680-1738)


129
iv.
Elisha (1686-1773)


130
v.
Ephriam (1688-)


131
vi.
Daniel (1690-<1752)


132
vii.
Ebeneezer (1693-1766)


133
viii.
Susanna (1695-)


134
ix.
Sarah (1704-)


135
x.
Benjamin (1698-)


136
xi.
Samuel (1700-1770)

Generations & Person Numbers:

Line 3:  G7 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (912/913)

44. Nathaniel4 NEWHALL (Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 17 March 1660 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[108,130] and died on 24 December 1695; he was 35[108,130]. According to Waters, Nathaniel lived “an uneventful life as a farmer” [130].  He is Waters #24.

There was “...a deed of conveyance to Batholmew Gedney, Esq. of Salem, from the brothers Joseph and Nathaniel Newhall ‘joynt tenants on a certain farm’ in Lynn bounded ‘East Northerly with ye line that parts Salem and Lynn being ye bounds of Clarke’s farme so called and extending Northwestward and Southwestward until it comes to ye bounds of Humphryes farm so called.’...”  The deed was dated 8 January 1696/7, but was put on record in 1719.  The deed was acknowledged on 9 January 1696/7 at Salem when Joseph Newhall claimed that he had seen his brother Nathaniel sign[131].

The only problem with this is that Nathaniel was long dead by this time.  In fact, the intention of marriage for his widow’s second marriage was published on that date.

Fraud?  Mis-entry?  Hmm…

Nathaniel left “...besides his homestead, a parcell of land also ‘bought of the Pond farme’ and some ‘housinge and land and saltmarsh at Linn.’...” [130]  Although, “by the [account of administration] brought into court 11 July 1704 by Mrs. Elizabeth Ingersoll, widow and [administratrix] of Nathaniel Newhall, it appears that this portion of the Pond farm had only been bargained for, not bought...” [130]
Administration was granted to Nathaniel’s widow, Elizabeth on 20 July 1696.  She had moved to Topsfield, Essex co., MA by this time.  Her surities were Samuel Simonds of Topsfield and Edward Norice of Salem[132].

“The Real Estate, less widow’s dower, was settled on the eldest son Nathaniel, he giving bonds 23 Dec., 1706, to pay to the other children, Samuel, Jonathon and Elizabeth their portions.  One of his sureties was his step-father John Ingersoll of Lynn.  After the death of the widow the oldest surviving son, Samuel Newhall, joyner, was appointed administrator de bonis non on his father’s estate, 13 May, 1739 (Elisha Newhall and Ebenr Bancroft sureties), and the dower property was assigned to him 4 June 1739, he paying to the representatives of his brother Nathaniel, deceased, to his brother Jonathoan (of Lynn) and to his brother Isaac Stone of Lexington, in right of Elizabeth, his wife, their respective portions...” [133]
Residences: Nathaniel also came into posession of some of the “threescore acres” bought by his father Thomas on 30 November 1679  from Ezekiel and Sarah Needham.  This plot was “bounded easterly with the dividing line between Salem  and Lynn, westerly by ‘a certaine farme comonly caled Mr Humphries but now Major Rainsberry’s farme,’ and southerly by the commons; which land the said Needham purchased of Daniel King, Senior, of Lynn, deceased.” [67,118]
He lived in north Lynn, near his brother Joseph[130].

In by 1685 when Nathaniel was 24, he married Elizabeth SYMONDS, daughter of Samuel SYMONDS & Elizabeth ANDREWS, in Lynn, Essex co., MA.[7,134,19] Born on 12 August 1663 in Salem, Essex co., MA[132].

They had the following children:


137
i.
Nathaniel (1684-1723)


138
ii.
Samuel (1686-)


139
iii.
Elizabeth1 (1688-1692)


140
iv.
Jonathon (1691-)


141
v.
Elizabeth2 (1694-)

45. Elizabeth14 NEWHALL (Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 21 March 1662 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[108]. Elizabeth1 died in Lynn, Essex co., MA circa 1665; she was 2[108].  She is Waters #25.   Elizabeth1 is the child who drowned in the pit which George Kesar had originally dug for his tanning process.  The Newhalls brought suit against him in the death of their daughter, but it was determined that Elizabeth’s older brothers had dug out the pit to keep alewives and, thus, Kesar was not responsible for the child’s death.

46. Elisha4 NEWHALL (Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 3 November 1665 in Lynn, Essex co., MA and buried on 28 Feb 1686/7 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[108].  He is Waters #26.

47. Elizabeth24 NEWHALL (Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 22 October 1667 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[108].  She is Waters #27.

48. Mary4 NEWHALL (Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 18 February 1669 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[108].  She is Waters #28.

49. Samuel4 NEWHALL (Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 19 January 1672 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[7,108,135,136,137 138].  Samuel died in Lynn, Essex co., MA by 6 April 1719; he was 47[49,139]. Samuel was a Joiner[138] and is Waters #29.

On 31 December 1695 when Samuel was 23, he married Abigail LINDSEY, daughter of Eleazer LINDSEY & Sara ALLEY in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,7,142,19,143,144,138]  Torrey notes that an Intention was filed for Samuel Newhall and Mary Hallewell on 25 August 1685 in Lynn, Essex co., MA; but they probably didn’t marry.

At Samuel’s death, he was “...possessed of a homestead consisting of a dwelling house, two barns, one mal house and about twelve acres, bounded easterly with the land formerly of John Newhall, Sr., deceased, westerly with the land of Benjamin Potter, northerly with the common and southerly with the country road or highway.”  This is probably his father’s homestead (see Thomas’ estate inventory) as well as part of his grandfather Thomas Newhall’s farm.[140,141]
Estate: Samuel's estate was administered 2 January 1718 and divested/probated on 6 April 1719 amongst the widow and all the children[139].  Administration was granted to his widow Abigail.  Her sureties were James Houlton and Samuel King[138].  Samuel, Jr. received the Real Estate and he gave bonds to pay his siblings their shares.  He mortgaged the homestead to protect the sureties on these bonds to Samuel Stone, of Salem, bricklayer and Joseph Jacobs of Lynn, yeoman.

They had the following children:


142
i.
Joseph (<1719-1775)


143
ii.
Huldah (ca1708-)


144
iii.
Samuel (1696-)


145
iv.
Hepzibah


146
v.
Jerusha


147
vi.
Elizabeth


148
vii.
Lydia


149
viii.
Solomon (-<1788)

Line 1:  G6 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (448/449)

Line 4:  G6 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (454/455)

50. Rebeca4 NEWHALL (Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 17 July 1675 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[108].  She is Waters #30.  On 22 May 1697 when Rebeca was 21, she married Ebeneezer PARKER, son of Hannaniah PARKER & Elizabeth BROWN[145].

They had the following children (surnamed PARKER):


150
i.
Elizabeth


151
ii.
Ebeneezer1


152
iii.
Ebeneezer2


153
iv.
Hepzibah (Twin)


154
v.
Mary (Twin)


155
vi.
Rebecca


156
vii.
Sarah


157
viii.
Hannaniah

66. Hannah4 NEWHALL (John3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 6 Mar 1679/80[82].  She is Waters #31.  On 12 January 1710/1 when Hannah was 30, she married John FARRINGTON &#40;Farrington #106&#41;, son of [probably John] FARRINGTON &#40;Farrington #28&#41; & Lydia HUDSON[145].

They had the following children (surnamed FARRINGTON):


158
i.
John (1710-)


159
ii.
Jeremiah (1712-)


160
iii.
Hannah (1714-)


161
iv.
Joseph (1718-<1749)

67. John14 NEWHALL (John3, Thomas3, not known1) was born in 13d:8m:1681[82].  John1 died on 2 November 1681[82].  He is Waters #32.

68. Joseph4 NEWHALL (John3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 18 December 1682[82] and died before 4 Feb 1711/12; he was 28[82].  He is Waters #33. Joseph married Sarah [surname not known].  His will was administered 4 February 1711/12, with his father, John as administrator[66].  Joseph Jacobs and Nathaniel Hathorne were sureties.  Inventory was presented 7 February 1712[82].  A charge “To Sarah Newhall for mourning £9” was in Joseph’s will[82].

69. Jeremiah4 NEWHALL (John3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 12 February 1684[82].  He is Waters #34.

70. Elizabeth4 NEWHALL (John3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 28 May 1687[82] and died on 12 April 1689; she was 1[82].  She is Waters #35.

71. Sarah4 NEWHALL (John3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 6 September 1690[82].  She is Waters #36.

72. John24 NEWHALL (John3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 28 January 1692[147].  He was Mariner[6] and is Waters #37.  This John was “John, the fifth” of the six extant John Newhalls from 1714 to 1717.  by 1725, he had “moved up” to John Newhall, Jr. with the death of his father and uncles[6].  John’s will was signed on 11 May 1767 and proved on 3 November 1778.  He appointed “his only surviving son John Newhall cordwainer sole executor[148].  On 23 May 1726, John and his wife conveyed to “John Wells (his brother-in-law) a lot of salt marsh at the far end of Rumney Marsh, formerly posessed by his hond father John Newhall, Senr., deceased, butting north on Bennet’s Creek and south on College River:  witnesses Elizth Townsend and Ebeneezer Townsend, jr.”  On 8 June 1747, “he conveys to Ebeneezer Tarbox a part of a lot laid out to John Newhall, Senr; and his (2nd) wife Elizabeth releases dower.” [149]  On 1 November 1722 when John2 was 30, he first married Abigail BAKER, daughter of Thomas BAKER[6].

They had the following children:


162
i.
Mary (1723-)


163
ii.
Abigail (1726-)

On 31 December 1732 when John2 was 40, he second married Elizabeth TOWNSEND[6].

They had the following children:


164
i.
Anna (1733-)


165
ii.
John (1736-)


166
iii.
Elizabeth (1740-)


167
iv.
Stephen (1738-)

73. Mary4 NEWHALL (John3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 12 October 1694[82].  She is Waters #38.  On 6 December 1721 when Mary was 27, she married John WELLS[82].

74. John4 NEWHALL, 4th ["Quartus"] (John3, Anthony2, not known1)[150] was born on 11 October 1664 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[7,49,151].  John died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 3 or 5 May 1718/19; he was 53[49,152].  He is Waters #69.

John was known as “John Newhall Quartus” until his father’s cousin John died.  But in his will, he called himself “John Newhall the Third sonn to John Newhall Senr yet Liueing.”[153]  In 1882, his house at the corner of Federal and Marion Streets was still standing.  His father deeded it to him in 1705[153].

John’s will was written 5 April 1718 and proven 17 July 1718[154,155].  According to Waters, “He mentions wife Rebecca and a ‘Legesy of about Twenty pounds giuen by dr. Hond father Henery Collings yet in reuertion.’  He leaves all his real estate to his “Eldist Sonn John Newhall, hoo hath liued long with mee and don much for mee,’ and ten pounds apiece to sons Henry, Eleazer, Nathaniel and David Newhall and to daughter Sarah...”[153]
On 28 March 1691 when John was 26, he married Rebecca COLLINS, daughter of Henry COLLINS Jr. & Mary TOLMAN, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[7,49,151,156].

They had the following children:


168
i.
David (1710-)


169
ii.
John (1692-)


170
iii.
Sarah (1703-)


171
iv.
Henry (1695-)


172
v.
Nathaniel (1706-1737)


173
vi.
Eleazer (1698-)


174
vii.
Increase (1699-1713)

Line 2:  G6 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (480/481)

75. Nathaniel4 NEWHALL (John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 3d:2m(April):1658 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[157,137,7,158,159,160].  He is Waters #67.  Check out interesting deed in Book XII, Leaf 129 of the Essex County Deeds.  In March 1687, Nathaniel & Rest took in Nathaniel & Sarah Handford in their old age[161]. Nathaniel moved to Boston, Suffolk co., MA between 1690 and 1692, “…where he bought a house at the North end in the street leading to the Burial Place.”[152]  On 4 February 1705/6, he conveyed to his brother John (“quartus” at this time) “ten acres near to Scrubed Pond so-called, not far from the Read Spring.  His wife Rest releases dower.” [152]
Nathaniel’s will was written 22 September 1730 and proved in Boston, Suffolk co., MA on 24 Jan 1731.  His son James received £60.  His son and sole executor John received all the rest of his estate, conditionally that he pay 20s. apiece to his grandchildren Eleazer & Nathaniel Newhall and Nathaniel & Samuel Woodward.  No other children are mentioned[152].

Nathaniel married Rest [surname not known].  But Torrey says she is possibly a relative of Nathaniel Handford.

They had the following children:


175
i.
Priscilla (1687-)


176
ii.
Nathaniel (1690-1717)


177
iii.
Sarah (1693-)


178
iv.
James (1695-)


179
v.
Ezekiel (1698-)


180
vi.
Abigail (1702-)


181
vii.
John (1705-)

76. Elizabeth4 NEWHALL (John3, Anthony2, not known1) died on 23 October 1694 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[153].  She is Waters #70.  On 14 June 1688 Elizabeth married Henry TRVITT/TREVETT[162].

They had the following children (surnamed TREVETT):


182
i.
Sarah


183
ii.
Elizabeth

77. Priscilla4 NEWHALL (John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 24 November 1676[49,98] and died on 31 May 1683; she was 6[98].

78. Sarah4 NEWHALL (John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 22 August 1662[137,151] and was buried on 27 November 1688[152].  She is Waters #68.  On 3 March 1679/80 when Sarah was 16, she married Timothy BREED, son of Allen BREED & Mary SARGENT[152].

They had the following children (surnamed BREED):


184
i.
Joseph (1681-)


185
ii.
Timothy (1683-)


186
iii.
Samuel (1686-)

79. Mary4 NEWHALL (John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 27 September 1673[98,137].  Mary was still unmarried in 1720 and was referred to as “Mary Newhall” in her father’s estate deed in 1725[98].

80. Rebecca4 NEWHALL (John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 6 December 1670[137,163].  She is Waters #71.  Rebecca married Eleazer COLLINS.

They had the following children (surnamed COLLINS):


187
i.
Jerusha


188
ii.
Elizabeth


189
iii.
Keziah


190
iv.
Rebecca

Fifth Generation 
—————————————————————————————————————————————

112. Lieutenant5 Thomas NEWHALL (Thomas4-2, not known1) is Waters #72. He moved early in his adult life to Leicester, MA and did quite well for himself there[164].  Thomas married Mary [surname not known].

They had the following children:


253
i.
Mary (1704-)


254
ii.
Hannah (1704-)


255
iii.
Abigail (1707-)


256
iv.
Lydia (1709-)


257
v.
Jonathon (1711-)


258
vi.
David (1713-)


259
vii.
Esther (1714-)


260
viii.
Dorothy (1717-)

114. Daniel5 NEWHALL (Thomas4-2, not known1) was born in 1685 in Malden and became an Innkeeper or Innholder in that town[177].  He is Waters #78.  On 8 January 1706/7 when Daniel was 21, he married Sarah FOSDICK, daughter of John FOSDICK[177].

119. Captain Jacob5 NEWHALL (John, 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 27 March 1686 and died on 19 May 1759; he was 73.  He was a cordwainer or shoemaker[178,179] and is Waters #87.  On “Nov. 19 1711, John and Elizabeth Becket and Jacob and Abigail Newhall, all of Salem, which Elizabeth and Abigail are called daughters of Mrs. Lydia Locker, wife of Mr. George Locker of Salem, and granddaughters of Tamazen Buffum, widow, late of Salem, deceased, convey to Edward Cox of Salem a parcel of land at Castle Hill in Salem.”[179]  On 19 March 1717/18, Jacob Newhall was officially appointed the guardian of the three children he had with Abigail Locker:  Locker, George and Abigail[179].  His will was written on 7 May 1759 and proved 28 May 1759.  He calls himself “Gentleman” in this document.  Ebeneezer Burrill, Jr. was named executor[180].  He was a Captain in the local military[179].  Soon after 1711, Jacob moved to Lynn and remained there[179].

On 30 November 1707 when Jacob was 21, he first married Abigail LOCKER, daughter of George LOCKER & Lydia BUFFUM[181].  Abigail died on 18 March 1712/13[181].

They had the following children:


261
i.
Locker (1708-)


262
ii.
George (1710-)


263
iii.
Abigail (1712-1759)

On 2 February1713/14 when Jacob was 26, he second married Hannah CHADWELL, daughter of Thomas CHADWELL (11 December 1662-) & Hannah SMITH[181].  On 29 December 1722, Jacob & Hannan gave quittance to Daniel Smith & Robert Lord, who were executors of thier grandmother, Hannah Smith[179].

They had the following children:


264
i.
Jacob (1714-1744)


265
ii.
Jonathon (1716-)


266
iii.
Moses (1718-)


267
iv.
Mary (1719-)


268
v.
Esther


269
vi.
Amos (1724-)


270
vii.
Nehemiah (1726-)


271
viii.
Jabez (1728-)


272
ix.
Nathan (1730-)


273
x.
James (1733-)

120. Elizabeth5 NEWHALL (John, 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 12 May 1678[178].  She is Waters #83.  On 3 July 1705 when Elizabeth was 27, she married Deacon Richard JOHNSON, son of Samuel JOHNSON & Mary [SURNAME NOT KNOWN] [183].

They had the following children (surnamed JOHNSON):


274
i.
Mary (-1743)


275
ii.
Samuel (1708-)


276
iii.
Joseph (Twin) (1715-)


277
iv.
Benjamin (Twin) (1715-1716)

121. Sarah15 NEWHALL (John, 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 5d:12m [February]:1679 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[184] and died on 6 Mar 1679/80[122].

122. Jonathon15 NEWHALL (John, 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 25 December 1681 and died in December 1688; he was 6[122].

123. Sarah25 NEWHALL (John, 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 23 January 1683[178] and died on 24 December 1734; she was 51[181].  She is Waters #86.  On 17 April 1712 when Sarah2 was 29, she married John FULLER, son of Edward FULLER & Hannah LEWIS[178]. 

They had the following children (surnamed FULLER):


278
i.
Jonathon


279
ii.
Mary


280
iii.
Ignatius


281
iv.
Edward


282
v.
Solomon


283
vi.
James

124. Mary5 NEWHALL (John, 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 26 April 1689[122].  On 9 December 1707 when Mary was 18, she married Thomas NEWHALL , son of Ensign Joseph NEWHALL & Susanna FARRAR[185]. She is Waters #91.

They had the following children:


284
i.
Jeremiah (1708-)


285
ii.
Esther (1710-)

125. Jonathon25 NEWHALL (John, 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 20 December 1692. Jonathon2 died on 4 December 1709; he was 16[122].

126. Joseph5 NEWHALL, Senior (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 6 February 1683/4 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,189,190].  Joseph died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 27 April 1742; he was 59[191,192].  He is buried in Old or West Cemetery, Lynn, Essex co., MA and is Waters #92.

His siblings gave him a quitclaim of their shares in the dower of their mother Susanna Simonds on 6 May 1723 and he lived on that homestead his entire life[194,195]:  “...the conveyance to Joseph Newhall by his brothers Thomas, Elisha, Ephriam, Daniel, Ebeneezer and Samuel, sons of Joseph Newhall, late of Lynn, deceased, of their shares in the dower of their mother, Susanna Simons, lately Newhall, in the place or homestead where their father had dwelt and where their brother Joseph then dwelt, 6 May 1723.  This was endorsed with the assent of Benj. Newhall, Joseph and Susanna Breed, and Thomas and Sarah Burrage, other children of the said Joseph Newhall, deceased[193].

On 13 Sep 1742, administration was granted to his sons Joseph & Jedidiah Newhall.  His brothers Daniel and Jedidiah Newhall served as sureties[167].

On 26 November 1713 when Joseph was 30, he married Elizabeth2 POTTER, daughter of Robert POTTER, Junior & Martha HALL in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,190].

They had the following children:


286
i.
Joseph (1715-1756)


287
ii.
Jedidiah (1717-)


288
iii.
Nathaniel (1724-1738)


289
iv.
Mary (1732-)


290
v.
Bethia (1720-)


291
vi.
Elizabeth (1728-)


292
vii.
Martha (1722-)


293
viii.
Andrew (1730-)

Line 3:  G6 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (456/457)

127. Jemima5 NEWHALL (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 31 December 1678 and married Benjamin VERY, of Salem[130].

128. Thomas5 NEWHALL (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 6 January 1680 and died on 30 Nov 1738/9; he was 58[187]. He was a farmer and “cloathier” [185] and is Waters #91.  His will was written on 30 November 1738 and proved on 5 February 1738/9.  His wife was appointed sole executrix[187].  He lived “on the north side of Reading Road so called, or the road that runs now from Salem through Peabody and Lynnfield to Wakefield, his estate running back to Humphrey’s Pond.  The western half of his house was afterwards occupied by his son and grandson, Jonathon, while the eastern half, after the widow’s death, was for a time in the possession of Mr. James E. Pease...”[188]
On 9 December 1707 when Thomas was 27, he first married Mary NEWHALL (Waters #124) , daughter of John NEWHALL 3rd (Waters #42) & Esther BARTRAM[185].  She was born on 26 April 1689[122].

They had the following children:


284
i.
Jeremiah (1708-)


285
ii.
Esther (1710-)

On 12 December 1717 when Thomas was 37, he second married Elizabeth BANCROFT, daughter of John BANCROFT Sr.[185].

They had the following children:


294
i.
[stillborn daughter] (1719-)


295
ii.
Jonathon (1721-)


296
iii.
Thomas (1723-1751)


297
iv.
John (1726-)


298
v.
James (1729-1729)


299
vi.
Amos (1730-)


300
vii.
Asa (1732-)

129. Captain Elisha5 NEWHALL (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 20 November 1686[168]. Elisha died in Lynnfield, Essex co., MA on 19 March 1773; he was 86[166].  He was a Farmer[167] and is Waters #93.

He was a Captain in the local military and lived near the Salem & Reading Road[167].  In 1717, Captain Elisha joined in a quitclaim with his siblings to his brothers Thomas and Joseph all right and interest in the estate of Ensign Joseph Newhall, with the exception of their mother’s dower[167].  On 16 May 1718, Captain Elisha bought two lots totaling 90 acres from his brothers Thomas and Joseph Newhall.  One northeast of Humphrey’s Pond and the other southeast of the pond.  Part of Elisha’s home was still standing there in 1882[169].  Finally, in 1761, Captain Elisha gave all his real estate to his son Matthew[166].

On 27 Feb 1710/11 when Elisha was 23, he married Jane BREED (Breed #95), daughter of Joseph BREED, Ensign & Sarah2 FARRINGTON (Farrington #23)[167].  The church record of their deaths reads:  “They lived very happily together as man and wife almost sixty-five if not almost sixty-six years, then died, but three days difference between yr deaths.  Thus were they lovely and pleasant in their lives, and in their death they were not divided.”[166]
They had the following children:


210
i.
Ruth (1712-)


211
ii.
Sarah (1714-)


212
iii.
Lydia (1716-)


213
iv.
Susanna (1719-)


214
v.
Jane (1721-)


215
vi.
Elijah (1723-)


216
vii.
Elisha (1726-)


217
viii.
Matthew (1730-)

130. Ephriam5 NEWHALL (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 20 Feb 1688/9[197].  On 12 December 1716 when Ephriam was 28, he married Abigail DENMARK[197].

They had one child:


301
i.
perhaps Ephriam

131. Daniel5 NEWHALL (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 5 Feb 1690/1[130].  Daniel died before 27 November 1752; he was 62[166].  He is Waters #95.  Daniel’s will was dated 3 Nov 1752 and proved 27 Nov. 1752; his son Jacob was named executor[166].

On 20 November 1713 when Daniel was 23, he married Mary BREED, daughter of Allen BREED & Elizabeth BALLARD[166].

They had the following children:


302
i.
Jacob


303
ii.
Josiah (1717-)


304
iii.
Elizabeth


305
iv.
Jemima


306
v.
Allen


307
vi.
Daniel


308
vii.
Nathaniel (1719-)


309
viii.
Joseph


310
ix.
Mary


311
x.
Rebecca

132. Ensign5 Ebeneezer NEWHALL (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 3 June 1693[173].  Ebeneezer died on 22 June 1766; he was 73[172]. He was a weaver or cloathier[172] and is Waters #96.

On 8 November 1718 when Ebeneezer was 25, he married Elizabeth BREED, daughter of Joseph BREED, Ensign & Sarah2 FARRINGTON[172].

They had the following children:


227
i.
Eunice (1720-)


228
ii.
Elizabeth (1723-)


229
iii.
Ebeneezer (1725-)


230
iv.
Nehemiah (1728-)


231
v.
Mehitable (1731-)


232
vi.
Ezra (1733-)

133. Susanna5 NEWHALL (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 19 December 1695[171].  She is Waters #97.  On 16 July 1717 when Susanna was 21, she married Joseph BREED, son of Joseph BREED, Ensign & Sarah2 FARRINGTON[170].

They had the following children (surnamed FARRINGTON):


218
i.
Theophilus (1719-)


219
ii.
Ruth (1721-)


220
iii.
Sarah (1723-)


221
iv.
Joseph1 (Twin) (1726-1726)


222
v.
Susanna (Twin) (1726-)


223
vi.
Lydia (1729-)


224
vii.
Joseph2 (1731-)


225
viii.
Mary (1733-)


226
ix.
Ephriam (1736-)

134. Sarah5 NEWHALL (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 11 July 1704[130].  On 3 Jan 1722/3 when Sarah was 17, she married Thomas BURRAGE[130].

135. Benjamin5 NEWHALL (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 5 April 1698[171]. He was a cordwainer or Shoemaker[170] and is Waters #98.  Benjamin served in the French & Indian War and was made Captain for his service there[170].  He was also Representative for the town of Lynn from 1748-1750 and 1752-1756[170].  On 1 January 1721 when Benjamin was 22, he married Elizabeth FOWLE, daughter of Captain James FOWLE & Mary RICHARDSON, in Woburn, Middlesex co., MA[130,199].

They had the following children:


312
i.
Bridget (1722-1750)


313
ii.
Mary (1724-)


314
iii.
Benjamin (1726-)


315
iv.
Ruth (1728-)


316
v.
James (1731-)


317
vi.
Isaiah (1733-)


318
vii.
Joel1 (1735-1745)


319
viii.
Aaron1 (1737-1738)


320
ix.
Aaron2 (1740-)


321
x.
Susanna (Twin) (1741-)


322
xi.
Elizabeth (Twin) (1741-1819)


323
xii.
Martha (1742-)


324
xiii.
Catharine (1744-)


325
xiv.
Joel2 (1745-)

136. Samuel5 NEWHALL (Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 9 Mar 1700/1[130] and died in October 1770; he was 70[165]. He was a husbandman[199] and is Waters #99.  Samuel was adopted by his uncle Thomas Farrar as a youth.  Thus, in Thomas’ will of 5 June 1730, Samuel and Richard Hood received the bulk of Thomas’ estate[165].  Samuel was a Quaker...interesting, since Thomas Farrar, Senior (father of his adopted father) had been accused in the witch furor.  Samuel’s will was  written on 28 July 1768 and proved 1 October 1770[165].  On 8 December 1724 when Samuel was 24, he married Keziah BREED, daughter of Samuel BREED Anna HOOD[165].

They had the following children:


326
i.
Anna (1725-)


327
ii.
Elizabeth (1727-)


328
iii.
Sarah (1730-)


329
iv.
Lydia (1732-)


330
v.
Pharaoh (1733-)


331
vi.
Abijah (1736-)


332
vii.
Abigail (1738-)


333
viii.
Daniel (1740-)


334
ix.
Rebecca (1743-)


335
x.
Ruth (1746-)

137. Nathaniel5 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 9 Feb 1684/5[200] and died on 28 Mar 1723/4; he was 39[201].  He is Waters #101.  His wife Phebe was appointed administratrix on 6 July 1724 with Isaac Larrabee and Joseph Newhall as sureties.  Administration was presented on 17 May 1725[201].  After Nathaniel’s untimely death, Phebe was appointed guardian of her daughter - aged 2 and 1/2 - on 23 May 1727.   Her sureties were Isaac Larraby of Lynn and Joseph Towne of Topsfield[201].  On 25 July 1723 when Nathaniel was 39, he married Phebe TOWNE[202].

They had one child:


336
i.
Phebe (1724-)

138. Samuel5 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 7 September 1686[203]. He was a joiner[204] and lived in the North part of Lynn, near the Salem & Reading road and perhaps next to the Welman Farm[204].  On 27 April 1740 when Samuel was 53, he married Mary HUTCHINSON[204].  Mary died before 12 December 1779[205].

They had the following children:


337
i.
Elizabeth


338
ii.
Dorothy


339
iii.
Mary

139. Elizabeth15 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 2 October 1688 and died on 1 October 1692; she was 3[138].

140. Jonathon5 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 4 May 1691[138].

141. Elizabeth25 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 16 October 1694[138].  She married Isaac STONE of Lexington.

142. Joseph5 NEWHALL, Junior (Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born before 1719 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[206] and died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 9 March 1775; he was 56[207].  He was a joiner[175] and is Waters #112.  In a deed of 23 March 1743/4, Joseph Newhall conveyed to his brother Samuel his share in his father’s estate[174].

On 20 September 1741 when Joseph was 22, he married Abigail HANSON, daughter of Thomas HANSON & Hannah PIERCE, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49].

They had the following children:


340
i.
Hanson (1741-1819)


341
ii.
Ebeneezer

Line 1:  G5 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (224/225)

143. Huldah5 NEWHALL (Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born circa 1708 in Lynn, Essex co., MA. Her name is also spelled Huldah or Huldia in various records.  She is Waters #113.  Huldah's birth is not recorded (as is the case with all but one of her siblings), but she is in her father's will of 6 April 1719.

On 2 June 1728 when Huldah was 20, she married Allen BREED, son of Joseph BREED, Ensign & Sarah2 FARRINGTON, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[174].

They had the following children (surnamed BREED):


233
i.
Joseph (1729-<1774)


234
ii.
Love (1731-1774)


235
iii.
Jerusha (1733-1826)


236
iv.
Huldah (1736-)


237
v.
Abigail1 (1739-1740)


238
vi.
Abigail2 (1741-)


239
vii.
Allen (1744-<1798)


240
viii.
Hepzibah (1746-1816)


241
ix.
Eliphalet (1750-1790)


242
x.
Frederick (1755-1820)

Line 4:  G5 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (226/227)

144. Samuel5 NEWHALL (Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 26 October 1696 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[211].  He was a malster, Husbandman & Fisherman[174].  He is Waters #106.  Samuel was involved in a lawsuit over the Real Estate he received from his father’s estate brought by his siblings and a slew of Alleys[212].  Administration on his estate was granted on 3 May 1760 to Allen Breed (a principal creditor from the lawsuit) - since the widow Katherine and the son, Solomon Newhall, Jr. had failed to take administration “as by paper of 19 June 1758, on file.”  Account presented on 27 September 1762[213].

On 24 July 1718 when Samuel was 21, he married Katherine STONE, daughter of Samuel STONE & Mary TREADWELL[211].

They had the following children:


342
i.
Solomon


343
ii.
Abigail

145. Hepzibah5 NEWHALL (Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) married Joseph ALLEY on 14 Jan 1724/5[145].

146. Jerusha5 NEWHALL (Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) married Timothy HOWARD on 19 May 1728[145].

147. Elizabeth5 NEWHALL (Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) is Waters #107.  On 26 September 1717 Elizabeth married Benjamin ALLEY, son of Hugh ALLEY & Rebecca [surname not known][213].  He was a fisherman and was born on 24 Feb 1694/5.

They had the following children:


344
i.
Jacob (1719-)


345
ii.
Solomon (1721-)


346
iii.
Eleazer (1723-)


347
iv.
Richard (1726-)


348
v.
Hannah (1728-)


349
vi.
Benjamin (1731-)


350
vii.
John (1738-)


351
viii.
Abner (Twin) (1741-)


352
ix.
Elizabeth (Twin) (1741-)

148. Lydia5 NEWHALL (Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) is Waters #111.  On 13 October 1734 Lydia married Ephriam STOCKER, son of Thomas STOCKER & Sarah BERRY[215].  He was a cordwainer[214] and was born on 4 April 1713[174].

They had the following children:


353
i.
Abigail


354
ii.
Ebeneezer


355
iii.
Sarah


356
iv.
Lydia


357
v.
Mary


358
vi.
Elizabeth


359
vii.
Ebeneezer


360
viii.
Hannah


361
ix.
Elijah

149. Solomon5 NEWHALL (Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) died before 26 August 1788[215]. He was a Cordwainer[214].  He is Waters #108.  On 16 January 1726/7 Solomon first married Mary JOHNSON daughter of Deacon Richard JOHNSON & Elizabeth NEWHALL[215]. Mary died on 28 September 1743[215].

They had the following children:


362
i.
Richard (1727-)


363
ii.
Ezra (1729-)


364
iii.
Hulda (1732-)


365
iv.
Timothy (1735-<1759)


366
v.
Jerusha (1737-1737)


367
vi.
Elizabeth (1742-)


368
vii.
Solomon (1743-1743)


369
viii.
Mary (1745-1824)

On 1 November 1744 Solomon second married Mary BLY[215].

162. Mary5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 2 January 1723 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[176].  She is Waters #128.  In 1745 when Mary was 21, she married Nathan LEWIS, son of Isaac LEWIS & Hannah HALLETT[148].

They had the following children (surnamed LEWIS):


370
i.
Lois


371
ii.
Nathan


372
iii.
John


373
iv.
Thomas


374
v.
David


375
vi.
Henry


376
vii.
Benjamin


377
viii.
Zachariah


378
ix.
Stephen


379
x.
William Burke

163. Abigail5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 25 Jan 1726/7 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[148,216].  On 11 June 1745 when Abigail was 19, she married Ephriam NEWHALL[148].

164. Anna5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 22 December 1733[148].

165. John5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 9 May 1736.

166. Elizabeth5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 18 September 1740.

167. Stephen5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Thomas3, not known1) was born on 4 September 1738.  Stephen apparently was engaged to marry “Mrs. Katherine Newhall of sd. Lynn, spinster” when he died.  She is mention in John2 Newhall’s will[98].

168. David5 NEWHALL, Sr. (John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 20 August 1710 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,217,218].  He is Waters #148.

He moved with his brothers Henry and Eleazer to Boston, Suffolk co., MA to be a shipwright for their uncle Nathaniel.  He also moved to Haverhill, Essex co., MA at some point.  He is “of Boston” on his marriage intention.  According to Waters, “In 1746, Henry Burchsted of Boston, physician, and wife Anna mortgaged some real estate to David Newhall of Boston, shipwright, which mortgage was released (on the margin) the next year.”[219]
On 10 May 1738 when David was 27, he first married Mary BURCHSTED, daughter of Dr. Henry BURCHSTED & Sarah BREAM, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[219,221,222].  Mary died in Boston, Suffolk co., MA on 17 August 1752; she was 36.

On 17 August 1752 David, Sr. gave guardianship of David, Jr. and Mary to his father-in-law Dr. Burchsted after his first wife’s death.  Both children were under 14[219].  On 10 January 1757, David Newhall regained guardianship of these two children, but was now “of Haverhill” [219].  But in 1762, “these children, viz.:  David Newhall of Boston, mariner, and Mary Newhall of Boston, single woman, children and heirs of Mary Newhall, deceased, convey a lot in Marblehead assigned to Sarah Burchsted in the division of the estate of her father, Capt. Benjamin James, deceased[220].

They had the following children:


380
i.
David (1739-1785)


381
ii.
Mary (1740-)

Line 2:  G5 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (240/241)

In April 1745 when David was 34, he second married Elizabeth MERCHANT, in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[219,223].

They had the following children:


382
i.
William (1747-)


383
ii.
Benjamin (1749-)


384
iii.
Elizabeth (1750-)

169. John5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 22 December 1692[224]. He was a weaver and yeoman[225].  He is Waters #142 and was the  youngest of six living John Newhalls “of age and living in Lynn between 1713 and 1717.”[225]  John’s will was executed on 23 February 1760 and presented for probate 3 November 1778[225].

On 7 Jan 1719/20 when John was 26, he married Lydia SCADLET[224] of Malden[153].

They had the following children:


385
i.
John (1721-)


386
ii.
Hannah (1722-)


387
iii.
Increase (1725-)


388
iv.
Lydia (1726-)


389
v.
William (1728-)

170. Sarah5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 19 July 1703[153].

171. Henry5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 7 June 1695[226]. He was a shipwright[227] and is Waters #143.  He was probably brought up by his uncle Nathaniel in Boston and probably lived at Charter Street and Henchman’s Lane[227].  His will was written on 30 March 1753 and proved 27 April 1753[227].  On 22 November 1722 when Henry was 27, he married Susanna SWIFT of Dorchester[153], in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[227].

They had the following children:


390
i.
Henry (1723-)


391
ii.
Susanna (1724-)

172. Nathaniel5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 7 October 1706[153].  Nathaniel died on 29 July 1737; he was 30[153].

173. Eleazer5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 20 April 1698[153].  Eleazer married Mary GRICE of Boston[153].

174. Increase5 NEWHALL (John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 19 March 1699/1700[153] and died on 31 May 1713; he was 14[153].

175. Priscilla5 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 28 November 1687 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[152].

176. Nathaniel5 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 11 June 1690 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[228].  Nathaniel died on 25 April 1717; he was 26[229].  He was a shipwright[229] and is Waters #133.  As an infant, his father took him to Boston, Suffolk co., MA[229].  He probably lived on Charter Street, near his cousin Henry Newhall.  He bought the land from James How of Boston on 2 March 1713/14[229].  On 1 January 1713 when Nathaniel was 22, he married Anne DARBY[229].

They had the following children:


392
i.
Eleazer (1714-)


393
ii.
Nathaniel (1716-)

177. Sarah5 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 14 March 1693 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[152].

178. James5 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 29 December 1695 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[152].

179. Ezekiel5 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 19 August 1698 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[152].

180. Abigail5 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 19 April 1702 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[152].

181. John5 NEWHALL (Nathaniel4, John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 22 October 1705 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[152].

Sixth Generation 
—————————————————————————————————————————————

210. Ruth6 NEWHALL (Captain Elisha5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 12 September 1712[166].  She married John BANCROFT.

211. Sarah6 NEWHALL (Captain Elisha5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 19 December 1714[166].  On 15 October 1735 when Sarah was 20, she married Jonathon HAWKES[166].

212. Lydia6 NEWHALL (Captain Elisha5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 16 January 1716[166] and married Daniel MANSFIELD.

213. Susanna6 NEWHALL (Captain Elisha5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 11 April 1719[166].

214. Jane6 NEWHALL (Captain Elisha5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 9 August 1721[166] and married John BREED.

215. Elijah6 NEWHALL (Captain Elisha5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 26 January 1723[166] and married Mary CHEEVER.

216. Elisha6 NEWHALL (Captain Elisha5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 6 November 1726[166].

217. Matthew6 NEWHALL (Captain Elisha5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born in 1730[166] and married Mary WRIGHT of Stoneham[166].

227. Eunice6 NEWHALL (Ensign Ebeneezer5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 6 October 1720[172].  On 4 May 1742 when Eunice was 21, she married Elkanah HAWKES[172].

228. Elizabeth6 NEWHALL (Ensign Ebeneezer5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 30 March 1723[172].  On 9 November 1752 when Elizabeth was 29, she married Abner CHEEVER, son of Thomas CHEEVER & Mary BAKER[172].

229. Ebeneezer6 NEWHALL (Ensign Ebeneezer5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on on 9 December 1725[172].  On 25 December 1755 when Ebeneezer was 30, he married Mary NEWHALL[172].

230. Nehemiah6 NEWHALL (Ensign Ebeneezer5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 26 August 1728[172].  Nehemiah married Tabitha BROWN of Reading[172].

231. Mehitable6 NEWHALL (Ensign Ebeneezer5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 2 March 1731[170] and married William CHEEVER.

232. Ezra6 NEWHALL (Ensign Ebeneezer5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 17 September 1733[170].

253. Mary6 NEWHALL (Thomas5-2, not known1) was born on 5 November 1704.

254. Hannah6 NEWHALL (Thomas5-2, not known1) was born on 29 Jan 1704/5.

255. Abigail6 NEWHALL (Thomas5-2, not known1) was born on 7 October 1707.

256. 6NEWHALL (Thomas5-2, not known1) was born on 18 Mar 1709/10.

257. Jonathon6 NEWHALL (Thomas5-2, not known1) was born on 4 Mar 1711/12.

258. David6 NEWHALL (Thomas5-2, not known1) was born on 22 March 1713.

259. Esther6 NEWHALL (Thomas5-2, not known1) was born on 7 December 1714.

260. Dorothy6 NEWHALL (Thomas5-2, not known1) was born on 14 Feb 1717/18.

261. Locker6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 12 November 1708[185].  He married Sarah [surname not known].

They had one child:


416
i.
Abagal (1737-)

262. George6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 12 December 1710[238].  He was a cordwainer[179].  On 31 December 1731, George conveyed all the estate that he received from his grandfather George Locker to his father Jacob Newhall[179].  He then moved to Boston[179].  On 7 June 1739 when George was 28, he married Sarah NORWOOD[185].

263. Abigail6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 27 Feb 1712/13 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[185,216].  Abigail died in 1759; she was 46[185].  Abigail was still a spinster as of 2 March 1733/4 when she conveyed her inheritance from her grandfather George Locker to her father Jacob Newhall.  Jonathon & Moses Newhall were witnesses[179].  She remained a spinster all her life.

264. Jacob6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 15 July 1714 and died on 14 August 1744; he was 30[185].

265. Jonathon6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 8 May 1716[185] and married Abigail NORWOOD.

266. Moses6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 7 May 1718[185].  On 7 Jan 1740/1, Thomas gave his grandson Moses Newhall real estate in Lynn.  Moses’ brother Jacob Newhall, Jr. witnessed[185].  On 6 Feb 1739/40 when Moses was 20, he married Susanna BOWDEN[185].

267. Mary6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 26 Feb 1719/20[185].  Mary married [not known] STOWERS.

268. Esther6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1).  On 1 December 1741 Esther first married Ignatius FULLER , son of John FULLER Sarah2 NEWHALL[185].  On 18 November 1758 Esther second married Edward BROCK.

269. Amos6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 2 September 1724[185].  On 7 December 1750 when Amos was 26, he married Margaret SOUTHWICK, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[233].  He lived in Salem.

270. Nehemiah6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 28 August 1726[185].

271. Jabez6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 14 Mar 1728/9.

272. Nathan6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 23 November 1730[185].  On 17 February 1756 when Nathan was 25, he married Mary FARRINGTON[185].

273. James6 NEWHALL (Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 14 June 1733.  In 1756 when James was 22, he married Sarah BARRETT[185].

284. Jeremiah6 NEWHALL (Thomas5, John, 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 4 November 1708.  On 24 April 1733 when Jeremiah was 24, he married Sarah BATES[187].

285. Esther6 NEWHALL (Thomas5, John, 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 1 September 1710.  On 5 July 1733 when Esther was 22, she married Jonathon WELMAN[187].

286. Joseph6 NEWHALL (Joseph5-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 27 October 1715 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,239,240] and died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 6 November 1756; he was 41[241,242].  He is Waters #217.  He lived in Salem and Danvers; with two children’s births are recorded in Salem, Essex co., MA[243].

When Joseph died, Abigail stayed with her mother.  Their children Jedidiah, Thomas and Joshua were given to Benjamin Newhall.  Martha & Elizabeth were given to Robert Mansfield.  No mention is made of the others.

Administration of his estate was granted 31 December 1756 to his widow Elizabeth.  Her sureties were Ebeneezer Newhall and Daniel Mansfield.  The estate was proved on 12 June 1758.  She “makes a charge for ‘Bringing up four young children’...” [242]  On 5 May 1743, “Joseph Newhall of Salem, husbandman, son of Joseph Newhall of Lynn, deceased, to Jedidiah Newhall administrator of said Joseph, of all his right in two-thirds of his father’s estate...”[243,244]
On 19 November 1738 when Joseph was 23, he married Elizabeth HODGMAN, daughter of Thomas HODGMAN & Abigail GEARY/GARY in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,243].

They had the following children:


417
i.
Nathaniel (1740-)


418
ii.
Abigail (1742-)


419
iii.
Joseph (1743-)


420
iv.
David


421
v.
Elizabeth


422
vi.
Thomas


423
vii.
Jedidiah (ca1750-1824)


424
viii.
Martha (Twin)


425
ix.
Joshua (Twin)

Line 3:  G5 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (228/229)

287. Jedidiah6 NEWHALL (Joseph5-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 8 April 1717[167].  Jedidiah married Ruth INGALLS.

288. Nathaniel6 NEWHALL (Joseph5-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 4 September 1724 and died on 29 Jan 1738/9; he was 13[167].

289. Mary6 NEWHALL (Joseph5-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 29 September 1732[167].

290. Bethia6 NEWHALL (Joseph5-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 1 October 1720 and on 3 October 1744 when Bethia was 24, she married Edward JOHNSON[167].

291. Elizabeth6 NEWHALL (Joseph5-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 24 July 1728[167].

292. Martha6 NEWHALL (Joseph5-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 15 or 18 Dec 1722[167].

293. Andrew6 NEWHALL (Joseph5-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 9 March 1730[167].  On 21 December 1752 when Andrew was 22, he married Susanna BROWN, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[167,233].

294. [stillborn daughter] NEWHALL (Thomas5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 22 March 1719[187].

295. Jonathon6 NEWHALL (Thomas5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 13 September 1721.  On 26 October 1742 when Jonathon was 21, he married Elizabeth JOHNSON[187].

296. Thomas6 NEWHALL (Thomas5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 18 Feb 1723/4 and died on 17 April 1751; he was 28.  His estate was administered 13 May 1751[187].  Thomas married Sarah [surname not known].

297. John6 NEWHALL (Thomas5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 20 March 1726[187].

298. James6 NEWHALL (Thomas5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 29 October 1729 and died on 17 Mar 1729/30[187].

299. Amos6 NEWHALL (Thomas5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 1 Mar 1730/1[187].  Amos married Margaret SOUTHWICK.

300. Asa6 NEWHALL (Thomas5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 5 August 1732[187].  On 21 November 1769 when Asa was 37, he married Sarah TARBEL[187,233].

They had one child:


426
i.
Asa Tarbell

303. Josiah6 NEWHALL (Daniel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born in 1717[172].  On 24 December 1740 when Josiah was 23, he married Hannah NEWHALL, daughter of John NEWHALL & Lydia SCADLET[227].

306. Allen6 NEWHALL (Daniel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  He is Waters #238.  On 29 March 1750 Allen married Love BREED, daughter of Allen BREED & Huldah NEWHALL[232,233].

307. Daniel6 NEWHALL (Daniel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) married Miriam WITT.

308. Nathaniel6 NEWHALL (Daniel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 19 September 1719[172].  Nathaniel married Abigail ABORN.

310. Mary6 NEWHALL (Daniel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) married Robert MANSFIELD.

311. Rebecca6 NEWHALL (Daniel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 7 December 1749 Rebecca married John JENKS[172].

312. Bridget6 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 30 November 1722 and died on 14 March 1750; she was 27[247].  On 13 August 1745 when Bridget was 22, she married Samuel DERBY[247].

313. Mary6 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 11 November 1724[165].  On 12 December 1751 when Mary was 27, she married Theophilus BREED, son of Joseph BREED & Susanna NEWHALL[230].
314. Benjamin6 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 6 September 1726[165].  On 4 August 1752 when Benjamin was 25, he first married Martha BURRILL, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[233].  Benjamin second married Elizabeth MANSFIELD.

315. Ruth6 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 13 Jan 1728/9.  On 1 October 1754 when Ruth was 26, she married Amos BREED[165].

316. James6 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 11 July 1731[165].  On 17 September 1756 when James was 25, he married Lois BURRILL[165].

317. Isaiah6 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 24 Mar 1733/4[165].  On 4 February 1759 when Isaiah was 25, he married Mary FULLER[165].

318. Joel16 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 22 December 1735 and died on 17 May 1745; he was 9[165].

319. Aaron16 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 23 October 1737 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216].  Aaron1 died on 9 Mar 1737/8[165].

320. Aaron26 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 26 March 1740 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[165,216].  On 1 December 1768 when Aaron2 was 28, he married Mary PERKINS, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[199].

They had one child:


427
i.
Aaron (1777-)

321. Susanna6 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 22 December 1741[165].  On 14 April 1763 when Susanna was 21, she married Thomas STOCKER[165].

322. Elizabeth6 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 22 December 1741 and died on 18 September 1819; she was 77[165].  On 8 May 1766 when Elizabeth was 24, she married Henry BURCHSTEAD[165].

323. Martha6 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 23 Feb 1742/3[165].  On 3 May 1762 when Martha was 20, she married Theophilus BURRILL[165].

324. Catharine6 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 27 April 1744[165].  On 8 September 1768 when Catharine was 24, she married Eleazer RICHARDSON[165].

325. Joel26 NEWHALL (Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 17 Feb 1745/6[165].

326. Anna6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 27 October 1725[165].  On 16 September 1746 when Anna was 20, she married Matthew ESTES, son of John ESTES, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[248].

327. Elizabeth6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 7 Mar 1727/8[165].

328. Sarah6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 20 August 1730[165].  Sarah married Abner JONES.

329. Lydia6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 14 Jan 1732/3[165].  Lydia married Nehemiah JOHNSON.

330. Pharaoh6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 15 Feb 1733/4[165].  On 24 April 1764 when Pharaoh was 31, he married Theodate BREED[165].

They had the following children:


428
i.
Silvanus


429
ii.
Abner1 (1767-)


430
iii.
Abner2 (1771-)

331. Abijah6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 15 February 1736/7 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[201,216].  He was a cordwainer[199].  On 29 April 1760 when Abijah was 24, he first married Abigail BASSETT, daughter of Daniel BASSETT, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[249].

They had the following children:


431
i.
Abigail (1776-)


432
ii.
Abijah (1778-)


433
iii.
Alice

Abijah second married Alice [surname not known].

332. Abigail6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 4 March 1738/9 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[201,216].  On 15 January 1760 when Abigail was 21, she married Samuel PURINTON of Danvers[201].

333. Daniel6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 4 Feb 1740/1[201].  Daniel married Hannah ESTES.

334. Rebecca6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 28 October 1743[201].  Rebecca married Abner CHASE of Salem.

335. Ruth6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 12 October 1746[201].  Ruth married John BASSETT.

336. Phebe6 NEWHALL (Nathaniel5-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born in 1724 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[204].  On 4 Jan 1749/50 when Phebe was 25, she married John LYNDSEY[204].

337. Elizabeth6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Nathaniel4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 21 October 1765 Elizabeth married Stephen COOKE of Salem[211].

338. Dorothy6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Nathaniel4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 15 March 1768 Dorothy married James BOTT of Salem[211].

339. Mary6 NEWHALL (Samuel5, Nathaniel4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 29 November 1764 Mary married Jonathon GLOVER[211].

340. Hanson6 NEWHALL (Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born in 1741/2 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[174,236].  Hanson died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 21 November 1819; he was 78[49,210].  He is Waters #315.

Waters maintains that proving Hanson’s parentage is difficult.  “The pedigree give above is the only one that has any appearance of probability in its favor.  It may be that his father died when he was very young and that he was brought up in the family of Timothy Howard, who, if this pedigree is correct, was his uncle by marriage.  At any rate Mr. Howard, who died childless, in his will of 8 Nov., 1762, proved 10 Sept., 1764, after bestowing legacies upon sundry brothers and upon Jacob Alley, a brother-in-law, bequeathed all his housing and lands and the balance of his personal estate to Hanson Newhall, who thus became possessed of a portion, at least, of the old homestead of his ancestors, Thomas[1], Thomas[4] and Samuel[29] Newhall,  This seems to have passed out of his possession just before the Revolution.”[210]
Hanson’s house was on the road to Blackmarsh[210].

On 6 February 1765 when Hanson was 24, he married Hepzibah BREED[234], daughter of Allen BREED & Huldah NEWHALL, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,237].  Hanson & Hepzibah were first cousins.

They had the following children:


411
i.
Timothy (1766-1799)


412
ii.
Sally (ca1768-1838)


413
iii.
Jerusha (1769-1824)


414
iv.
Allen (1771-1845)

Line 1:  G4 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (112/113)

341. Ebeneezer6 NEWHALL (Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) first married Hannah LARRABEE.  Ebeneezer second married Martha [surname not known].

342. Solomon6 NEWHALL (Samuel5-4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 26 August 1751 Solomon married Lois HOWARD[213].

343. Abigail6 NEWHALL (Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 14 December 1744 Abigail married Isaac WILSON of Salem[213].

362. Richard6 NEWHALL (Solomon5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 14 October 1727[215].  On 14 November 1751 when Richard was 24, he married Lydia WILLIAMS[215].

363. Ezra6 NEWHALL (Solomon5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 5 Jan 1729/30[215].  On 12 December 1751 when Ezra was 22, he married Elizabeth PECKS[215].

364. Hulda6 NEWHALL (Solomon5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 18 July 1732[215].  On 26 June 1753 when Hulda was 20, she married Jacob ALLEY[215].

365. Timothy6 NEWHALL (Solomon5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 15 September 1735 and died before 5 November 1759; he was 24[215].

366. Jerusha6 NEWHALL (Solomon5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 17 October 1737 and died on 23 February 1737/8[215].

367. Elizabeth6 NEWHALL (Solomon5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 2 August 1742[215].

368. Solomon6 NEWHALL (Solomon5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 28 September 1743 and died on 7 February 1743/4[215].

369. Mary6 NEWHALL (Solomon5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 3 October 1745 and died on 29 September 1824; she was 78[215].

380. David6 NEWHALL, Jr. (David5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 21 June 1739 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[250,251,252].  David died of consumption in Salem, Essex co., MA on 25 April 1785; he was 45[253,254]. He was a Mariner[254].  He is Waters #354.

David, Jr. moved first to Haverhill, Essex co., MA and then to Salem, Essex co., MA.  In Salem, he lived in a 1/2 house on Becket Street, which he bought in January of 1778[254].  When he died, he left everything to his wife Mary[254].

David & Mary’s intention of marriage is in possession of Walter K Hall of Sudbury and reads:

“I hereby certify that the Names of Mr. David Newhall, junr. heretofore of Boston, now of Salem & Mary Johnson heretofore of Lynn, now of Salem, with their Intention of Marriage, have been entered with me fifteen days, & that their said Intention hath been by me posted at the Great Meeting House (so called) a publick place in said Salem fourteen Days, & nothing objected.  Salem June 29th, 1766.

     John Higginson Town Clerk”[255]
Also framed with the intention is the following bill of sale:

June 30th 1766

Mr. David Newhall to Stepn Phippen Jr

	
	
	
	£
	s
	d

	
	To a walnut case of Draws
	
	4
	13
	4

	
	To Baedsted of Raels
	
	0
	14
	8

	
	To a Stand
	
	0
	6
	0

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	£
	5
	14
	0

	
	
	
	3
	8
	0

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Balance
	2
	6
	0

	
	
	Contra
	
	N
	

	
	
	By Cash
	0
	12
	0

	
	
	By Cash
	2
	16
	0

	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	£
	3
	8
	0


Errors Ensepted by Stepn Phippen

[on the back of the frame]

May 19th 1767

Recd the within in full of all accounts  Stepn Phippen[255].

On 29 June 1766 when David was 27, he married Mary JOHNSON, daughter of John JOHNSON & Deborah THOMAS, in Salem, Essex co., MA[137,220].

They had the following children:


434
i.
Joseph (1773-1823)


435
ii.
Hannah


436
iii.
Ruth


437
iv.
Hepzibah


438
v.
Dorcas


439
vi.
Mary


440
vii.
David (ca1768-)

Line 2:  G4 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (120/121)

381. Mary6 NEWHALL (David5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 7 October 1740 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[220,260].  She is Waters #355.

382. William6 NEWHALL (David5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 24 April 1747 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[220,261].  He is Waters #356.

383. Benjamin6 NEWHALL (David5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 26 April 1749 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[220,262].  He is Waters #357.

384. Elizabeth6 NEWHALL (David5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 23 June 1750 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[220,263].  He is Waters #358.

385. John6 NEWHALL (John5-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 12 May 1721 and on 10 April 1746 when John was 24, he married Sarah LEWIS[227].

386. Hannah6 NEWHALL (John5-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 13 October 1722[227] and on 24 December 1740 when Hannah was 18, she married Josiah NEWHALL , son of Daniel NEWHALL & Mary BREED[227].

387. Increase6 NEWHALL (John5-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 31 March 1725[227].

388. Lydia6 NEWHALL (John5-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 15 August 1726[227].

389. William6 NEWHALL (John5-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 31 March 1728[227].

390. Henry6 NEWHALL (Henry5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 16 April 1723 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[227].

391. Susanna6 NEWHALL (Henry5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 10 November 1724 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[227].  On 7 January 1747 when Susanna was 22, she first married William BLAKE[227].  Susanna second married Duncan INGRAHAM.

392. Eleazer6 NEWHALL (Nathaniel5-4, John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 23 November 1714 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[225].  Eleazer was maintained, clothed and schooled from 25 April 1717 until 25 October 1725.  On that date (aged 8 1/2) he was bound as an apprentice.  He was 2y:8m when his father died[264].  Finally, he and his brother were placed under the guardianship of their grandfather Eleazer Dorby, wharfinger, on 24 September 1728[225].

393. Nathaniel NEWHALL (Nathaniel5-4, John3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 6 April 1716 in Boston, Suffolk co., MA[225].  He was roughly 1y when his father died.  Finally, he and his brother were placed under the guardianship of their grandfather Eleazer Dorby, wharfinger, on 24 September 1728[225].

Seventh Generation 

—————————————————————————————————————————————

411. Timothy7 NEWHALL (Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 17 December 1766 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,210] and died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 25 March 1799; he was 32[49].  He is Waters #725.  On 2 March 1794 when Timothy was 27, he married Lois HUTCHINS[210].

412. Sally7 NEWHALL (Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born circa 1768 in Lynn, Essex co., MA and died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 18 May 1838; she was 70[49].  She is Waters #726.  On 11 April 1793 when Sally was 25, she married Timothy MUNROE[210].

413. Jerusha7 NEWHALL (Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 15 April 1769 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[210] and died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 31 March 1824; she was 54.  On 12 June 1790 when Jerusha was 21, she married Benjamin JOHNSON Jr.[210].

414. Allen7 NEWHALL (Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 6 March 1771 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,210,265,266] and died in Fremont, Rockingham co., NH on 23 February 1845; he was 73.  He is Waters #728.  Before moving to New Hampshire, Allen lived on Market Street in Lynn, Essex co., MA.

On 7 February 1793 when Allen was 21, he first married Michal NEWHALL, daughter of Jedediah NEWHALL & Michal DOWNING, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[210,233].

They had the following children:


451
i.
Oliver Nelson (1814-1894)


452
ii.
Allen


453
iii.
Thomas Hanson


454
iv.
William H. B.


455
v.
Mary


456
vi.
Otis


457
vii.
Lucy Jane


458
viii.
George Pickering


459
ix.
Alfred Augustus


460
x.
John Wesley


461
xi.
Timothy


462
xii.
Levi Downing


463
xiii.
Susan Betsey

Line 1:  G3 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (56/57)

Line 3:  G3 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (56/57)

Line 4:  G3 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (56/57)

Line 7:  G3 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (56/57)

On 21 April 1828 when Allen was 57, he second married Betsy BROWN, daughter of Jonathon BROWN & Sarah [surname not known], in Lynn, Essex co., MA.

416. Abagal7 NEWHALL (Locker6, Captain Jacob5, John 3rd4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 18 March 1737 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216].

417. Nathaniel7 NEWHALL (Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 27 April 1740[269] and married Rebecca HARWOOD.

418. Abigail7 NEWHALL (Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 29 June 1742 and died of Dropsy[269].

419. Joseph7 NEWHALL (Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 23 June 1743[269].  He first married Dorcas BARRETT and second married Hannah NOURSE.

420. David7 NEWHALL (Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) married Sarah HARWOOD.

421. Elizabeth7 NEWHALL (Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) married William NEWHALL.

422. Thomas7 NEWHALL (Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) first married Sally LEWIS and second married Sally HUDSON.

423. Jedediah7 NEWHALL (Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born circa 1750 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[270] and died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 20 December 1824; he was 74[49].  He is buried at the First Congregational Church, Lynn, Essex co., MA.  At the age of 15, Jedediah was baptized on 7 July 1765[269]. Jedidiah was a last-maker, heel-maker, cordwainer and trader.  He is Waters #490.

On 17 November 1774 when Jedediah was 24, he married Michal DOWNING, daughter of Captain Caleb DOWNING & Sarah COATES, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,269].

They had the following children:


464
i.
Michal (1777-1827)


465
ii.
Sally (1775-)


466
iii.
Thomas (1782-1830)


467
iv.
Nabby (1789-)


468
v.
Ruth (1794-)


469
vi.
Betsy (1779-)


470
vii.
Charlotte (1787-)


471
viii.
Jedidiah (1791-)


472
ix.
Aaron (1797-)

Line 3:  G4 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (114/115)

424. Martha7 NEWHALL (Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was baptized on 8 December 1765[269].  On 20 February 1777 Martha married Ezekiel NEWHALL[269].

425. Joshua7 NEWHALL (Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was baptized on 8 December 1765[269].  He moved to New Haven, CT[269] and married Comfort CARRINGTON.

426. Asa Tarbell7 NEWHALL (Asa6, Thomas5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 20 September 1807 Asa Tarbell married Judith LITTLE of Newbury, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[233].

They had one child:


473
i.
Asa Tarbell

427. Aaron7 NEWHALL (Aaron26, Benjamin5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 9 November 1777 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216].

428. Silvanus7 NEWHALL (Pharaoh6, Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 28d:11m:1801 Silvanus married Lydia GOVE, daughter of Stephen GOVE & Huldah [surname not known], in Amesbury, Essex co., MA[271].

They had one child:


474
i.
Abigail Curtin (1815-)

429. Abner17 NEWHALL (Pharaoh6, Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 24 September 1767 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216].

430. Abner27 NEWHALL (Pharaoh6, Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 19 July 1771 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216].

431. Abigail7 NEWHALL (Abijah6, Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 20 February 1776 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216].

432. Abijah7 NEWHALL (Abijah6, Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 1 January 1778 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216].

433. Alice7 NEWHALL (Abijah6, Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 20d:7m:1750 Alice married Thomas BUTMAN, son of Richard BUTMAN & Mara [surname not known], in Lynn, Essex co., MA[248].  He was a cordwainer[233].

434. Joseph7 NEWHALL, Jr. (David6-5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born in June 1773/1781 in Salem, Essex co., MA[272,273].  Joseph died at sea aboard the brig Leander on 16 January 1823; he was 49[137].  Joseph’s birthplace is given as Salem, Essex co., MA on his son David Johnson Newhall’s death certificate[272].

His “estate” was divided amongst the crew of the Leander.  Basically, it looks like his worldly goods were sold to his shipmates and the money given to his widow.  [speculation by author]

“Inventory and Aprasal of Sundry articles of wearing Apparel & etc. belonging to Joseph Newhall late 2nd Officer of the Brig Leander.

	1
	Great Coat
	to Joseph Poole
	$4.00

	1
	Pea Jacket
	“       “
	$7.00

	1
	Monkey “
	Hugh M. Notty
	.50

	2
	pr Woolen drawers
	to William Kelly
	$3.25

	1
	Clothes Bag
	James Gilbert
	$1.05

	2
	pr Woolen Trowzers
	Hugh M. Notty
	$2.00

	2
	pr     do         do
	James Gilbert
	$2.00

	1
	woolen waistcoat
	do
	$1.65

	1
	do        do
	William Stetson
	$[??]

	[?]
	pr. Stockings
	HW Notty
	.35

	[?]
	do     do
	Wm Seagell
	.80

	[?]
	Flannel Shirt
	John Marble
	$1.30

	1
	do     do
	do
	.87

	1
	pr. Canvass Trowsers
	Wm Greenleaf
	$1.25

	1
	do          do
	Wm Seagill
	.65

	1
	do          do
	Wm Stetson
	.75

	1
	pr Thin pantaloons + Jacket
	Wm Kelly
	$2.10

	1
	do  duck  pantaloons
	James Gilbert
	$1.35

	2
	Check Shirts
	H Mc Nolty
	$1.[?]

	2
	do   do
	James Gilbert
	$1.2[?]

	6
	do   do (old)
	Mc Nolty
	.62

	1
	White Shirt and Striped pantaloons
	Wm Stetson
	$3.45

	2
	Thin Waistcoats   do
	do
	.40

	1
	pr Nankin pantaloons
	do
	.65

	1
	Flag Hat [Glas?]
	Wm Greenleaf
	.65

	1
	do   do
	Wm Stetson
	.70

	1
	Black Silk   do
	do
	.40

	1
	Quadrant
	James Gilbert
	$7.30

	1
	Slate and old Journal
	Wm Seagell
	.55

	
	
	
	

	
	[Back of Page One]
	
	

	
	
	brot forward
	$49.24

	
	
	
	

	1
	Journal
	to James Gilbert
	$2.75

	1
	pr Scissors Comb & Tinder box
	Wm Stetson
	.70

	1
	Towel
	Wm Greenleaf
	.10

	
	
	
	

	
	BOOKS
	
	

	
	Bowditch’s Navigator
	do
	$2.30

	
	Indian Wars
	Joseph Poole
	.7[?]

	
	Hive(?)
	Chs Barnes
	.40

	
	George Barnwell
	Jos. Poole
	.40

	
	Johnsons Dictionary
	Wm Seagell
	.50

	
	Charlotte Temple
	J Peele
	.35

	
	Awful Beacon
	Wm Greenleaf
	.25

	
	Plays
	Wm Seagell
	[?]

	
	Natural Curiosities
	Jos. Peck [Poole?]
	[?]

	
	Sentimental Journal
	do
	[?]

	
	
	
	

	3
	old Books
	Wm Kelly
	[?]

	1
	Broadcloth Coat
	Chs Barnes
	$6.60

	1
	quire paper and quills
	Wm Kelly
	.70

	1
	Silver Watch
	Wm Stetson
	$1.50

	1
	Sea Chest
	H Mc Nolty
	$2.30

	1
	Sail Hook
	Wm Kelly
	.12

	1
	Jacknife needles and Thread
	Wm Stetson
	.16

	1
	Looking glass
	Wm Seagell
	.19

	6
	Bowls & 2 Tumblers
	J Peck [Poole?]
	.70

	[?]
	pr White Stockings
	Wm  Stetson
	.45

	[?]
	Case razors and Bottle [??] Balsam
	A Phillips
	.75

	2
	Inkstands
	Wm Kelly
	.20

	1
	Turkey Oil Stone
	Wm Greenleaf
	.50

	1
	pr Boots
	H Mc Nolty
	.32

	1
	Scale
	Wm Seagell
	.25

	2
	yrds Duck
	A Phillips
	$1.15

	1
	old pillow Case some patches
	Wm Kelly
	

	6
	empty Bottles piece soap & Shaving Box
	Wm Kelly
	.30

	4
	lbs Tobacco
	Wm Seagell
	.70

	1
	pr Shoes
	A Phillips
	$1.60

	
	
	
	$77.30

	
	
	
	

	
	[On Second Sheet of Paper]
	
	

	
	
	brot forward
	$77.30

	3
	old pr shoes
	to Wm Stetson
	.70

	2
	Bottles Pepper Sauce
	Jos Pecke
	.70

	4
	do Gin
	Brig Leander
	$1.50

	1
	Straw Hat
	Jos. Peele
	.60

	1
	do   do
	Wm Kelly
	$1.10

	1
	Fur Hat
	A Phillips
	$1.13

	1
	Jacket
	do
	$5.50

	
	at Sea Jan 16th 1823
	
	$88.53

	
	
	Charles Roundy
	


The above is a correct amount of Sales of all the effects belonging to the late Mr Joseph Newhall

Nathan Smith

N.B.  The Bedding was thrown overboard[274]
On 21 December 1806 when Joseph was 33, he married Sally [Sarah] DUNKLEE, daughter of Hezekiah DUNKLEE & Katherine MARSH in Salem, Essex co., MA[273].

They had one child:


475
i.
David Johnson (1822-1901)

Line 2:  G3 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (60/61)

Eighth Generation 

—————————————————————————————————————————————

451. Oliver Nelson8 NEWHALL (Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 25 January 1814 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,278,279,280].  Oliver Nelson died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 4 October 1894 of Cancer of the Face; he was 80[266].  In an 1847 mortgage to J. W. Abbott, his occupation is given as “Cordwainer”.  The same occupation is also on his son, Henry’s Birth Record[280].

Nelson A. Newhall gave the following mortgage to Oliver N.  Newhall:  City of Lynn, Received Aug. 8, 1872 at 10.0clock  Recorded Book 10, Page 420  Examined by Benj. H. Jones City Clerk.

“[KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that] I. Nelson A. Newhall of Lynn County of Essex and Commonwealth of Massachusetts stable keeper [in consideration of] the sum of Four Thousand Dollars [paid by] Oliver N. Newhall of said Lynn assessor.  [the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, do hereby give, grant, bargain, sell, and convey unto the said] Oliver N. Newhall [the following goods and chattels, namely:]

one black horse six years old called Fred

one black horse seven years old called Dick

one brown horse eight years old called Loafes(?)

one bay horse nine years old called Warren

one roan horse six years old called Roan

one brown mare ten years old called Dolly

one black mare seven years old called Segar(?)

one Hack, Dark color

Three Buggies - (two top and one open)

one Carryall dark color with light lining

Two sets Double Harnesses

Five sets single Harnesses

Four Sleighs. Buffalo and other Robes

Blankets, halters, chains and all the tools and implements used in my business.

Said property being at the Lynn Hotel Stable situate on Western Avenue.

[TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the granted premises, with all the privileges and appurtenances thereto belonging to the said] Oliver N. Newhall [and] his [heirs and assigns, to their own use and behoof forever.]

[And] I [do hereby for] me [and] my [heirs, executors, and administrators, covenant with the said grantee and] her [heirs and assigns that] I am [lawfully seized in fee-simple of the granted premises, that they are free from all incumbrances.]

[And] I do [hereby COVENANT with the grantee that] I am [the lawful owner of the said goods and chattels; that they are free from all incumbrances,] made or suffered by me [that] I [have good right to sell the same as aforesaid; and that] I [will WARRANT ANED DEFEND the same against the lawful claims and demands of all persons.]

[PROVIDED NEVERTHELESS] that if the said grantor, or] his [heirs, executors, administrators, or assigns, shall pay unto the said grantee, or] his [heirs, executors, administrators, or assigns the sum of] four Thousand (STRUCK OUT: one hundred) Dollars [in] one year [from this date, with interest semi-annually at the rate of] eight [per cent. per annum, and until such payment shall pay all taxes and assessments on the granted premises; shall keep the buildings thereon insured against fire in a sum not less than] Four thousand [dollars, for the benefit of the said grantee, and] his [executors, administrators, and assigns, at such Insurance Office as they shall approve, and shall not waste or destroy the same, nor suffer them or any part thereof to be attached on mesne process; and shall not, except with the consent in writing of the grantee, or] his [representatives, attempt to sell or to remove from] the aforesaid premises------ [the same or any part thereof, - then this deed, as also note of even date herewith, signed by the said] Nelson A. Newhall [whereby] I [promise to pay to the grantee or order the said sum and interest at the times aforesaid, shall] all [be void.]

BUT UPON ANY DEFAULT in the performance of the foregoing condition, the said grantee, or] his [executors, administrators, or assigns, may sell the said goods and chattels by public auction, first giving] thirty [days’ notice in writing of the time and place of sale to the grantor or] his [representatives.  And out of the money arising from such a sale the grantee, or] his [representatives shall be entitled to retain all sums then secured by this mortgage, whether then or thereafter payable, including all costs, charges, and expenses incurred or sustained by] him or [them in relation to the said property, or to discharge any claims or liens of third persons affecting the same, rendering the surplus, if any, to the grantor or] his [executors, administrators, or assigns.]

[AND IT IS AGREED that the grantee, or] his [executors, administrators, or assigns, or any person or persons in their behalfs, may purchase at any sale made as aforesaid; and that until default in the performance of the condition of this deed, the grantor and] his [executors, administrators, and assigns, may retain possession of the above mortgaged property and may use and enjoy the same.]

[IN WITNESS THEREOF] I [the said] Nelson A. Newhall do [hereunto set] my [hand and seal and affix and cancel the stamp required by law, this] Thirtieth [day of] July [in the year one thousand eighthundred and seventy-] two.  (Recd. $4.00)

Signed, sealed, and delivered

in presence of two written words erased before signing

B. H. Jones

Nelson A.  Newhall [his signature]

Having received in full the sum named in the foregoing mortgage given me by Nelson A Newhall of Lynn I hereby cancel and discharge said Mortgage relinquishing all claims to security thereby --

Witness my hand and seal this second day of August 1873 --

Oliver N. Newhall (his signature)

City of Lynn

The foregoing discharge received and Entered on margin of Record Book 10 page 400

By Benj. H. Jones City Clerk[281].“

He received $100.00 for the Grove Street property in the 1847 mortgage to J. W. Abbott and paid it off in 1857.  He became the town assessor.

On 28 May 1833 when Oliver Nelson was 19, he married Maria Augusta SWEETSER, daughter of Joseph SWEETSER & Sarah CHEEVER, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49].

They had the following children:


482
i.
Abby Marla (1834-1907)


483
ii.
Lydia Ellen (1835-1854)


484
iii.
Nelson Allen (1837-1904)


485
iv.
Mary Nichols (1839-1839)


486
v.
Charles Barker (1840-)


487
vi.
John Henry (1843-1844)


488
vii.
Alfred Augustus (1844-1844)


489
viii.
Thomas Eugene (1846-1853)


490
ix.
William Arthur (1848-)


491
x.
Eva Eugenia (1852-1892)


492
xi.
Ellen Augusta (1854-)


493
xii.
Henry Ernest (1857-1931)

Line 1:  G2 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (28/29)

Line 3:  G2 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (28/29)

Line 4:  G2 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (28/29)

Line 7:  G2 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (56/57)

452. Allen8 NEWHALL, Jr.(Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 15 June 1815 Allen married Martha ADAMS, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[233].

464. Michal8 NEWHALL (Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 16 January 1777 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,266].  Michal died in Fremont, Rockingham co., NH on 12 January 1827; she was 49.  Her name is also spelled Michel, Michael, Michah and Michail on occasion and birth records[267].  On her son Oliver’s Death Record, her name is given as “Michel Brown” [268] - clearly mixing up Michal Newhall and Allen’s second wife Betsey Brown in a rather interesting combination.  She is Waters #728.

On 7 February 1793 when Michal was 16, she married Allen NEWHALL[265], son of Hanson NEWHALL & Hepzibah BREED, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[210,233].  They lived on Market Street in Lynn until they moved to Fremont, New Hampshire.  They were in New Hampshire by 11 October 1818, which is the date of Michal’s letter home.

Two letters from Michal Newhall are extant and in the possession of Alan M. Hall of Orr’s Island, ME.  A transcription follows:

Epping [, New Hampshire] October the 11th 1818

Dear Children

It Seems(?) to be for long Since i Saw you I must rite a few lines although attended with a litel(?) expense thiese lines(?) leaves our famely well.  But my head akes – so bad I have been a bed almoust all day.  I am very much afflicted with it Ever since I went to Lynn(?) likewise rumitisaism(?)  But my appetite is good I due any work.  Lydia has been done work for me 5 weeks  She has kiepit(?) haus too  George lives a mile above mr Hoyets  they have got som New ourneture [furniture?]  Lydia has been finding a Hundred pare of shoes for mr Mathwes  T & G [Timothy? or Thomas? and George] has been making them

I could get along very well at present if I could due my washin without getting Sick.  I have heard 2 days for two week after I came from Lynn I was a(?)moust crasey(?) with the Headake and other Complants & had my work to due at the same tim  I did not dare to tell any one just how I felt  But thought I should be crasey if my bad feelings continued for I felt somewhat agatated in mind about ma[n]y thing  Sometimes I ame like many of old encombered with my tarering(?) and trubeled about many things of a worldly nature if I could live a litel free(?) from Care I could enjoy more health  I hope Timothy will come to Lynn but wee can have work for my Gredely(?) som time but no good place to work in winter.  Due rite to T [Timothy?] before long if he dont come I want Thams [Thomas?] two if he due enughf for you or others to pay for Sculing a evings or his board this winter  I hope others will come if Martha dount  mr Newhall will come down at thanksgiving mr N & I expect to goe a journey next week to New Salam and Sand[wich] & Chester [all towns in New Hampshire]  I have been to portsmouth [New Hampshire] & to exetor [Exeter, NH] of late.  But two but litel Profit it is tranform work I got cotten for any beastick and some nese...s things the last time I expect to goe to market from this place.

I often think I could take much comfort in Lynn if I lived thier with my friends my Children and aquaintances  But if it never is my lot again may I be contented in my destination.  But if I can live in some Christian land whare the peopel is moralized and think of living for another would it will be very pleasing to mr Newhall and me.  I have had some very agreabel hours as will as dull ones Since i was at Lynn, the quarterly Meeting was very good  mr. othemion(?) preaches hear once a month & is a verry correct good speaker  the peopel Flaock to geather but not all to hear the work for they dont lik to Set still  On any acount I often think I should like to stay in the country but on others I cant  baer the thought.  mr Nichels I want you to Inquir the Price of Land in the new raod that leeds from John M to Breeds and on some of Joel Breeds  if you need not let peopel know your end of enquiaring if old mr with[...?...] should be to tell at any time rite about it.  Mr New/ thinks a litel of coming of a place should present that he likes with some land or he could build  I think we must look all round and try to accomidate us in our old age if wee can but part of what wee now have  But I will no dwell on this theem any longer  It Pesters my Brains.  I wish I could gave(?) it upon(?)  wee must commit our care to hyer Pwers and trust in a all wise God to direct in temporals as well as in Spiritual things

Wee had but a Short But agreeabel visit from the Lynn friends  mr N was very Sick a few days but is torebel [terrible?] well now if mr Tilley comes to Lynn dont be persuaded to take his Boy he used to Bad tricks i can tell you more the Boy is tracxtabol no dout But wount due to trsut I have Cake(?) for Allen(?)  Send the uper[...?...] fir Mifs Rundlast(?)

I want you to rite as Sune as you can give my live(?)  Jedidiah & wife tell them they must not think them Selves slited by me becase I did not vist them  I was very Fancy(?) it happend so did not I entended(?)  to have Spent some ours their the afternoon I came to Salam [Salem, MA]  But Thomas would drive us and would come that way I should like to have J rite to me give my respects to Men(?) folks  Abbigall Mrgin was mared some time in May to a good Husband a farmer 3 children living at Kittrey [Kittery, ME]Below Portsmouth  Has a Prospect of living well hir Health is not very good yet his child(?) is with hir after mr Salley receive a later from you he will com  excuse my ritting I ame in hast I Close by Sending my Self your ever dear Parents

Michall Newhall

Be so good as to Burn this Scroll as Sune as read

Letter from Michal Newhall to John Nichols in Lynn, 1825:

Poplin(?)  October the 18th 1825

Dear Children

After neglecting my peen along time I atempt to rite to you as want of Health for a long time prevented before Compellecting(?) and S... that times my time wase all taken up the furst fore weeks the next week went to Nottenham [Nottingham, NH] to the funarel of Gorges child Rodey(?) Sinclair  By this time I felt very much beat out almost Sick but Beter than my one cold hav thought ...ening the 5 weeks care Before that time  Our family are well with few exceptions of ... I hope you are Better by this time and all your famely Injoying Health.  I Shld have retin [written] Before But my health is so poor of late that I have not rote any... think my Health rather Better this fall  But I am afflicted very much with the rumatisism & some mo...th  ...a Blessing Health is when wee are deprived of it  wee know how to prize it for every comfort and blessing in life cannot give us pleasure if wee are not for a situation to enjoy them  ...many [Mary?] I hope you are verry thankfull that he Lord has delt so well witt you and yours for many ... a very very short [notes?] of late have been cold to grant with their dear connection and things are changed with them anf the pleasure of their Sosiaty is over on earth  But this litel Sickness in your famely may only be a hint from the Lord to you to Prepar for Sickness as death that your Spiritual House May be put in Order and like Minute Mean May be ready for time is fleeting & Eternity drawing near and it is time our Lamp ware tremed and wee prepared to meet our Judge for at Such an our as wee think not wee may be cald to have al that wee have heard weather Prepared or not wee must away & think what we have seen and flet [felt] of late is plain t...ing for disipoint semes to be rettin [written] on Many thing In our House it seames as if look so desolate and foraken [forsaken] by me as the men and the other cannot injoy the ... Past seamms within a few week I cant discribe my ...   ...not right them so that you could have been around the Sick Bed of your Sister and near to your brother for Surly this has Bein a day of trubel & Sorofull Season and mya [may] it Be rememered by him that it is from the land and who it is that delt our ... beter  ...that those beter draft.  of affliction and Be prepared to Meet his wife and Child in Heaven.

Postscript on the back of this letter:

Poplin(?)  October the 23rd 1825

I will attemp to tell you a how things have been since you went from hear that very ...week after you went home  I could hardly set out half of myu time I flet [felt] so sick(?)  my Thumb was geting soar I was thrtned with feeling I could not soow any for 5 week Before Camp Meeting nt well yet But Can work it was not a  ... I Could not rite or I had time a plenty it being my right one tell Allen to come I met to finish this and not send the other but can

Timothy and J sned [send] their love to & Allen they want to see him Thomas H[eal]th is Better.

They had the following children:


451
i.
Oliver Nelson (1814-1894)


452
ii.
Allen


453
iii.
Thomas Hanson


454
iv.
William H. B.


455
v.
Mary


456
vi.
Otis


457
vii.
Lucy Jane


458
viii.
George Pickering


459
ix.
Alfred Augustus


460
x.
John Wesley


461
xi.
Timothy


462
xii.
Levi Downing


463
xiii.
Susan Betsey

Line 1:  G3 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (56/57)

Line 3:  G3 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (56/57)

Line 4:  G3 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (56/57)

Line 7:  G3 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (56/57)

465. Sally8 NEWHALL (Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 26 October 1775.

466. Thomas8 NEWHALL (Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 14 February 1782 and died on 30 November 1830; he was 48.

467. Nabby8 NEWHALL (Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 11 September 1789.

468. Ruth8 NEWHALL (Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 6 January 1794.

469. Betsy8 NEWHALL (Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 19 April 1779.

470. Charlotte8 NEWHALL (Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 1 January 1787.

471. Jedidiah8 NEWHALL Jr.(Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 20 September 1791.  He married Ann Eaton [surname not known].

They had one child:


494
i.
Abraham Brown (1835-)

472. Aaron8 NEWHALL (Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 23 July 1797 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216].  On 17 October 1813 when Aaron was 16, he married Sally ALLEY, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[199].

They had one child:


495
i.
Aaron (1814-)

473. Asa Tarbell8 NEWHALL Jr. (Asa Tarbell7, Asa6, Thomas5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1)  On 17 November 1836 Asa Tarbell married Theodate J. NEWHALL, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[233].

474. Abigail Curtin8 NEWHALL (Silvanus7, Pharaoh6, Samuel5, Ensign Joseph4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 3 January 1815 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216].

475. David Johnson8 NEWHALL (Joseph7, David6-5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 8 December 1822 in Salem, Essex co., MA[272,285].  David Johnson died in Lynn, Essex co., MA on 26 October 1901; he was 78[272]. David’s age at death is given as 81y:11m:18d[272].  Occupation: Shoe Cutter is listed on his death certificate, but is listed as a shoemaker on the 1850 census[286].  Cause of death: “Cystitis Prostate” in the listings, but “Hypertrophy of Prostate” on his actual certificate[272].

His 1850 Census entry is from SALEM and lists[287]:

David J. Newhall
31
M.
Shoemaker
MA (birthplace)

Harriet A. Newhall
29
F.
       --
MA (birthplace)

David lived in Lynn, Essex co., MA at the time of his death[272].

On 22 November 1848 when David Johnson was 25, he married Harriet Attwood CARROLL, daughter of Edward CARROLL & Hannah MOWER, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[288,289].

They had the following children:


496
i.
Mary Josephine (1861-1931)


497
ii.
Abigail


498
iii.
Sarah

Line 2:  G2 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (30/31)

Line 5:  G2 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Bassett, Breed, Hood via Anthony)  (30/31)

Line 6:  G2 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Breed, Hood, via Anthony)  (30/31)

Line 8:  G2 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Burrill, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (30/31)

Ninth Generation 
—————————————————————————————————————————————

482. Abby Maria9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 16 February 1834 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216] and died on 13 March 1907; she was 73[292].  Her name is also given as Abba Marla on her birth record.

Abby M. Newhall gave a mortgage to Mary N. Newhall:  registered in Salem, 26 December 1871 at “5 m. before 11 A.M.  Recd and ent. with Essex Deeds Southern District, Book 843 Leaf 15.”  By Mr. Ephriam Brown, Registrar.  Mortgage discharged 10 Sept. 1873.

“[KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that] Abby M. Newhall of Lynn, in the County of Essex and Commonwealth of Massachusetts, single woman, [in consideration of] thirteen Hundred Dollars to me [paid by] Mary N. Newell of Cambridge in the County of Middlesex and Commonwealth aforesaid.  [the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, do hereby give, grant, bargain, sell, and convey unto the said] Mary N. Newell, that certain piece or parcel of land situate in said Lynn, bounded westerly by Gove Street, there measuring forty four feet, northerly by lands of Oliver N. Newhall, there measuring ninety six feet; Easterly by land now or formerly of Fairchild, there measuring forty four feet, and southerly by lands of Oliver N. Newhall there measuring ninety six feet being the same lands conveyed to me by said Oliver N. Newhall.

[a one dollar U.S. revenue stamp entry of goods]

[a fifty cents U.S. revenue stamp entry of goods]

[TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the granted premises, with all the privileges and appurtenances thereto belonging to the said] Mary N. Newell [and] her [heirs and assigns, to their own use and behoof forever.]

[And] I [do hereby for] me [and] my [heirs, executors, and administrators, covenant with the said grantee and] her [heirs and assigns that] I am [lawfully seized in fee-simple of the granted premises, that they are free from all incumbrances.]

[that] I [have good right to sell and convey the same as aforesaid; and that ] I [will and] my [heirs, executors, and administrators shall WARRANT AND DEFEND the same to the said grantee and] her [heirs and assigns forever against the lawful claims and demands of all persons.]

[PROVIDED NEVERTHELESS] that if the said grantor, or] her [heirs, executors, administrators, or assigns, shall pay unto the said grantee, or] her [heirs, executors, administrators, or assigns, shall pay unto the said grantee, or] her [executors, administrators, or assigns the sum of] Thirteen Hundred Dollars [in] three [years from this date, with interest semi-annually at the rate of] eight [per cent. per annum, and until such payment shall pay all taxes and assessments on the granted premises; shall keep the buildings thereon insured against fire in a sum not less than] One Thousand________ [dollars, for the benefit of the said grantee, and] her [executors, administrators, and assigns, at such Insurance Office as they shall approve, and shall not commit or suffer any strip or waste of the granted premises, then this deed, as also] a [note of even date herewith, signed by the said] grantor [whereby] she [promises to pay to the said grantee or order, the said sum and interest at the times aforesaid, shall be void.

BUT UPON ANY DEFAULT in the performance of the foregoing condition, the said grantee, or] her [executors, administrators, or assigns, may sell the granted premises, with all improvements that may be thereon, by public auction in said] Lynn [first publishing a notice of the time and place of sale once each week for three successive weeks in one or more newspapers published in said] Lynn [and convey the same by proper deed or deeds to the purchaser or purchasers absolutely and in fee-simple; and such sale shall forever bar the grantor and all persons claiming under] her [from all right and interest in the granted premises, whether at law or in equity.  And out of the money arising from such sale the said grantee, or] her [representatives shall be entitles to retain all sums then secured by this deed, whether then or thereafter payable, including all costs, charges and expenses incurred or sustained by reason of any failure or default on the part of the said grantor or] her [representatives to perform and fulfil the condition of this deed, or any covenant or agreement herein contained, rendering the surplus, if any, together with an account of all such costs, charges, and expenses to the said grantor or] her [heirs or assigns.]

[AND IT IS AGREED that in case any sale shall be made as aforesaid, the grantor or] her [heirs or assigns will, upon request, execute and deliver such further deeds or instruments as may be necessary or proper to confirm such sale and to vest a perfect title to the premises sold in the purchaser thereof; that the said grantee, or] her [executors, administrators or assigns, or any person or persons in their behalf, may purchase at such sale, and that no other purchaser shall be answerable for the application of the purchase money; and that until default in the performance of the condition of this deed, the grantor and] her [heirs and assigns may hold and enjoy the granted premises and receive the rents and profits thereof.]

[struck out:  provisions for releasing dower and homestead]

IN WITNESS THEREOF [I] the said [Abby M. Newhall] hereunto set [my] hand and seal and affix and cancel the stamp required by law, this [eighth] day of [December] in the year one thousand eight hundred and seventy- [one].

Signed, sealed, and delivered

in presence of

M. Howland.

Abby M. Newhall [her signature]

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS.

[Essex] ss. [December 8th] 187[1].  Then personally appeared the above-named [Abby M. Newhall] and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be [her] free act and deed, before me-

M. Howland [his signature]

Justice of the Peace[293].

483. Lydia Ellen9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 14 October 1835 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49] and died on 10 September 1854; she was 18[294].

484. Nelson Allen9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 19 May 1837 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49] and died on 25 January 1904; he was 66.  On 3 July 1857 when Nelson Allen was 20, he married Hannah B. CARTER, in Lynn, Essex co., MA.

485. Mary Nichols9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson9, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 28 April 1839 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49] and died on 21 October 1839.  See mortgage entry under Abby.  It appears that neither Mary nor Abby married.

486. Charles Barker9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 25 December 1840 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49] and married Margaret MORIARTY, in Lynn, Essex co., MA.

487. John Henry9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 17 February 1843 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49] and died on 12 August 1844; he was 1.

488. Alfred Augustus9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 6 June 1844 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49] and died on 7 August 1844 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49]; he was 2 months and 1 day old.

489. Thomas Eugene9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 15 September 1846 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49] and died on 25 April 1853; he was 6.

490. William Arthur9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 13 May 1848 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49] and married Virginia SEGER, in Swampscott, Essex co., MA.

491. Eva Eugenia9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 18 January 1852 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49] and died on 17 March 1892; she was 40.  On 19 May 1875 when Eva Eugenia was 23, she married Charles A. JENKINS, in Lynn, Essex co., MA.

492. Ellen Augusta9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 24 November 1854 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49].  On 10 May 1881 when Ellen Augusta was 26, she married Fred J. NEWHALL, in Lynn, Essex co., MA.

493. Henry Ernest9 NEWHALL (Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 11 November 1857 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,280,295,296,297].  Henry Ernest died in Melrose, Middlesex co., MA on 20 July 1931; he was 73[284].  He is buried in Pine Grove Cemetery, Lynn, Essex co.,. MA[284].  Henry was a Shoecutter at the time of his second marriage and a concrete paver at the time of Marian’s birth.  At the time of his death, he had been a Watchman until July 1931[284,296,298]. Cause of death: Myocarditis-longstanding + Arterial sclerosis & Angina Pectoris.  The first symptoms occurred after fighting a brush fire during his work as a watchman[284].  His doctor at the time of death was A. L. Newhall on 7 Vine Street, Lynn[284].

On 22 August 1877 when Henry Ernest was 19, he first married Hattie WHITE, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[300].  She was born in 1857 in West Peabody, MA[297].

On 8 April 1885 when Henry Ernest was 27, he second married Mary Josephine NEWHALL[295], daughter of David Johnson NEWHALL Harriet Attwood CARROLL, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,298].  They lived at 101 Grove Street, Lynn at the time of Marian’s birth and were still there at the time of Henry’s death[284,296].

They had the following children:


508
i.
Marian Louise (1893-1984)


509
ii.
Leonard

Line 1:  G1 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (14/15)

Line 2:  G1 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (14/15)

Line 3:  G1 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (14/15)

Line 4:  G1 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (14/15)

Line 5:  G1 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Bassett, Breed, Hood via Anthony)  (14/15)

Line 6:  G1 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Breed, Hood, via Anthony)  (14/15)

Line 7:  G1 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (14/15)

Line 8:  G1 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Burrill, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (14/15)

494. Abraham Brown9 NEWHALL (Jedidiah8-7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 5 August 1835 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[301].

495. Aaron9 NEWHALL (Aaron8, Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 6 August 1814 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[216].  On 31 December 1835 when Aaron was 21, he married Mary H. ALLEN, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[199].

They had one child:


510
i.
Aaron (1840-)

496. Mary Josephine9 NEWHALL (David Johnson8, Joseph7, David6-5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1) was born on 20 October 1861 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,285,295,296] and died in Melrose, Middlesex co., MA on 21 October 1931; she was 70[255].  She is buried in Pine Grove Cemetery, Lynn, Essex co., MA[299]. Cause of death: Myocarditis, Chronic Valvular Disease + Arterio Sclerosis[299].

On 8 April 1885 when Mary Josephine was 23, she married Henry Ernest NEWHALL[295], son of Oliver Nelson NEWHALL & Maria Augusta SWEETSER in Lynn, Essex co., MA[49,298].  They lived at 101 Grove Street, Lynn at the time of Marian’s birth and were still there at the time of Henry’s death[284,296].  At the time of her death, she had lived at 25 Norman Road (with Marian & A.B. Maddison) in Melrose for just 14 days[299].

They had the following children:


508
i.
Marian Louise (1893-1984)


509
ii.
Leonard

Line 1:  G1 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (14/15)

Line 2:  G1 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (14/15)

Line 3:  G1 Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (14/15)

Line 4:  G1 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (14/15)

Line 5:  G1 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Bassett, Breed, Hood via Anthony)  (14/15)

Line 6:  G1 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Breed, Hood, via Anthony)  (14/15)

Line 7:  G1 Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (14/15)

Line 8:  G1 Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Burrill, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (14/15)

497. Abigail9 NEWHALL (David Johnson8, Joseph7, David6-5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1)
498. Sarah9 NEWHALL (David Johnson8, Joseph7, David6-5, John4-3, Anthony2, not known1)
Tenth Generation 
—————————————————————————————————————————————

508. Marian Louise10 NEWHALL (Henry Ernest9, Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 5 August 1893 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[295,296].  Marian Louise died in Peabody, Essex co., MA on 1 August 1984; she was 90. Cause of death: Terminal Pneumonia (2 days) + Senescience.  

On 29 May 1922 when Marian Louise was 28, she married Arthur Blake MADDISON, son of Mark R. MADDISON & Alina / Aleen "Lena" O'CONNOR, in Lynn, Essex co., MA[295,296].  Marian lived at 101 Grove Street, Lynn, Essex co., MA and was a Bank Clerk at the time of her marriage[295].

They had the following children (surnamed MADDISON):



i.
Barbara Ann (1923-1988)



ii.
Frederick



iii.
David

Line 1:  Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (6/7)

Line 2:  Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Anthony)  (6/7)

Line 3:  Grandparents (Direct to Marian via Thomas)  (6/7)

Line 4:  Grandparents (Newhall, Breed, via Thomas)  (6/7)

Line 5:  Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Bassett, Breed, Hood via Anthony)  (6/7)

Line 6:  Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Breed, Hood, via Anthony)  (6/7)

Line 7:  Grandparents (Newhall,Breed, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (6/7)

Line 8:  Grandparents (Newhall, Carroll, Mower, Burrill, Farrington, via Elizabeth)  (6/7)

509. Leonard NEWHALL (Henry Ernest9, Oliver Nelson8, Allen7, Hanson6, Joseph5, Samuel4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was Marian’s brother and apparently died young.

510. Aaron NEWHALL (Aaron9-8, Jedidiah7, Joseph6-4, Thomas3-2, not known1) was born on 22 February 1840 in Lynn, Essex co., MA[307].
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